
 

 
 

Brawley City Council & 
Successor Agency to Brawley  

Community Redevelopment Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, February 4, 2020 6:00 PM 
City Council Chambers 

383 Main Street 
Brawley, California 92227 

 
Norma Kastner-Jauregui, Mayor                                        Alma Benavides, City Clerk 
Luke Hamby, Mayor Pro-Tempore               William S. Smerdon, City 
Sam Couchman, Council Member                   Attorney/City Treasurer 
George A. Nava, Council Member  Rosanna Bayon Moore, City Manager/ 
Donald L. Wharton, Council Member                                                  Executive Director 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
INVOCATION  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

1



 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
2. PUBLIC APPEARANCES/COMMENTS (Not to exceed 4 minutes) this is the 
 time for the public to address the Council on any item not appearing on the 
 agenda that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council. The 
 Mayor will recognize you and when you come to the microphone, please state 
 your name for the record. You are not allowed to make personal attacks on 
 individuals or make comments which are slanderous or which may invade an 
 individual’s personal privacy. Please direct your questions and comments to  
 the City Council. 
 
a. Introduction of Newly Hired Accounting Assistant Jessica Castillo, by Finance 
 Director Tyler Salcido.  
 
b. Proclamation Declaring February 7-14, 2020, National Marriage Week in the City 
 of Brawley Presented to Ms. Maria Lopez- Pantoja, IVROP Project Coordinator.  
 Pg 6 
 
3. CONSENT AGENDA Items are approved by one motion. Council Members or 
 members of the public may request consent items be considered separately at a 
 time determined by the Mayor.  
 
a. Approve Accounts Payable: January 24, 2020  Pgs 7-24 
      January 31, 2020  Pgs  25-39 
  
b. Adopt Resolution No. 2020-  : Resolution of the City Council of the City of 
 Brawley, California Authorizing a Continuous Resolution Destruction Schedule 
 for Brawley Police Department Public Records.  Pgs  40-53 
 
c. Award a Geotechnical and Materials Testing Contract to Landmark Consultants, 

Inc. for Project No. 2019-07 Allen Street Water Pipeline Replacement 
Improvements Project in the Amount of $23,010.00, with a 10% Contingency Set 
Aside for an Amount Not to Exceed $25,311.00.   Pgs  54-65 

 
d. Adopt Resolution No. 2020- :  Resolution of the City Council of the City of 

Brawley, California Authorizing the Submission of the City of Brawley’s 5-Year 
Program List of Projects Funded by Measure D for Years 2020 through 2024, 
Beginning January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2024.  Pgs  66-73 

 
4. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
a. Discussion and Potential Action to Award Project No. 2019-07 Allen Street Water 

Pipeline Replacement and Improvements Project to Granite Construction 
Company in the Amount of $613,316 2 with a 10% Contingency Set Aside for an 
Amount Not to Exceed $674,647.60. Pgs  74-76 

2



 

 
b. Presentation of FY 2019/2020 Mid Year Budget Review by Tyler Salcido, 

Finance Director.  Pgs  77-99 
 
c. Discussion and Potential Action to Approve Auditing Services Contract with Moss 

Levy & Hartzheim for FY Ending June 30, 2019 in the Amount of $54,500.   
 Pgs  100-106 
 
d. Discussion and Potential Action to Adopt Resolution No. 2020- :  Resolution of 

the City Council of the City of Brawley, California Accepting Grant Funds 
Allocated to the Citizen’s Option for Public Safety (COPS) Program and 
Submittal of the Expenditure Plan for FY 2018/2019 Funding through the State of 
California Local Safety and Protection Account.  Pgs  107-111  

 
e. Discussion and Potential Action to Adopt Resolution No. 2020- :  Resolution of 

the City Council of the City of Brawley, California Authorizing the City to Apply for 
an Award from the Infill Infrastructure Program.  Pgs  112-114 

 
f. Discussion and Potential Action to Approve Los Amigos de la Comunidad’s 

Request for Sale and Consumption of Alcohol on Public Property, Specifically on 
Main Street, North and South Plaza Park on Saturday, March 28, 2020 for the 
Cesar Chavez Community Celebration from 10am to 11pm.  Pgs  115-118 

 
g. Discussion and Potential Action to Approve Submittal of a Letter of Support to 

the California Energy Commission for the Salton Sea Geothermal Lithium 
Recovery Demonstration Project at the Request of Berkshire Hathaway Energy 
(BHE) Renewables.  Pgs  119-121 

 
5. DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 
 
a. Update by Public Works Director Guillermo Sillas, PE  
 

i) Emergency Construction at the Brawley Water Treatment Plant 1) to 
Replace Components of Two Sedimentation Basins and 2) to Recondition 
Water Distribution Pumps and Motors 422 and 423 

 
b. Update on Efforts to Restore Girls and Adult Softball Leagues by Interim Parks & 

Recreation Director Marjo Mello 
 
6. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 
 
a. Monthly Staff Report for February 2020, prepared by Shirley Bonillas, Personnel 
 & Risk Management Administrator. Pg 122 
 
 

3



 

b. Record of Building Permits for December 2019 in the City of Brawley, Prepared 
 by Oscar Escalante, Interim Building Official.  Pgs 123-124 
 
b. Attendance Summary & Minutes for City of Brawley Boards/Commissions from  
 October 1 – December 31, 2019. 
 
 1) Brawley Airport Advisory Commission Pgs  125-131 
 2) Brawley Parks & Recreation Commission  Pgs  132-137  
 3) Brawley Planning Commission  Pgs  138-143   
 4) Brawley Library Board of Trustees  Pgs 144-149  
 
7. CITY TREASURER REPORT 
 
a. Quarterly Investment Summary through December 2019  Pgs 150-151 
 
8. CITY COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS   
 
9. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
10. CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
11. CITY CLERK REPORT 
 
12.  CLOSED SESSION 
 
REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS 
 
a. Conference with Real Property Negotiator – (California Government Code 

§54956.8) 
Address: 225 A Street, Brawley, California 

           Negotiator: City Manager 
           Negotiating Parties:  Boys & Girls Club 
           Under Negotiation: Rate and Terms 
 
EXISTING LITIGATION (California Government Code §54956.9) 
 
a. Conference with Legal Counsel – Two (2) Cases 

 
i. Frankie Rodriguez, Pablo C. Lopez, Marco A. Garcia, Omar 
 Balderas, Gerardo Vindiola, David Villalobos, Julian Jimenez, 
 Ricardo Rosales, Daniel Atondo, David Siquieroz, Jonathan 
 Gutierrez, Anthony Padilla, Julio Velasquez, Roberto Orozco, 
 Mariano C. Valenzuela, Jr., Raul Bernal, Ralph Walker, Jose Limon 
 and Pete Guzman, on behalf of themselves and all other 
 employees similarly situated vs. City of Brawley.  

4



 

 
   
ii. Brawley Public Safety Employee Association, Jeremy Schaffer, 
 David Holetz, Jorge Garibay, Darlene Garcia, Dennise Montano, 
 Nathan Montes-Gonzalez, Karla Razo, Daniel Swithenbank, Daniel 
 Schleyer, Ricardo Gutierrez, Juan Morales, Ana Amaya, Brian 
 Harsany, Angelica Garcia, Martha Garcia, Javier Martinez, Jake 
 Yuhas, Dean Beckwith, Ricardo Valdez, David Pham, Stephen 
 James Dyroff, Adriana Ruiz, Jon Dellinger, Isaac Romo, Jesse 
 Yuhas, Susanne Nickel, Rudy H. Nunez, Diana Diaz, Sixto Moreno, 
 Joon Kim, Francisco Mendoza, Maghen Caudill, Regina Kim vs. 
 City of Brawley. 

 
POTENTIAL LITIGATION (California Government Code §54956.9) 
 
a. Conference with Legal Counsel – One (1) Case 
 
PERSONNEL MATTERS (Government Code §54957) 
 
a. Public Employee Appointment to the Position of Police Chief 

 

ADJOURNMENT Regular Meeting, Tuesday, February 18, 2020 @ 6:00 PM, 383 
Main Street, Brawley, California. Supporting Documents are available for public review 
in the Office of the City Clerk, 383 Main Street, Brawley, California 92227 - Monday 
through Friday during Regular Business Hours; Individuals who require special 
accommodations are requested to give 48 hours prior notice.  Contact: Office of the City 
Clerk @ 760-351-3080. 
        

        Alma Benavides, City Clerk 

5



 
 

P
ro

cl
a

m
a

ti
o

n
 

D
ec

la
ri

n
g

 t
h

e 
w

ee
k

 o
f 

F
eb

ru
a

ry
 7

-1
4

th
, 
2

0
2
0

 a
s 

 

“
N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

M
a

rr
ia

g
e 

W
e
ek

”
  

  
W

h
er

ea
s,

 m
ar

ri
ag

e 
b

in
d

s 
co

u
p

le
s 

to
g
et

h
er

 i
n
 a

 n
et

w
o

rk
 o

f 
af

fe
c
ti

o
n
, 

m
u

tu
a
l 

ai
d

 a
n
d

 m
u

tu
al

 o
b

li
g
at

io
n
, 

co
m

m
it

s 
p

ar
en

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir

 c
h
il

d
re

n
, 

co
n
n
ec

ts
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 

to
 a

 w
id

er
 n

et
w

o
rk

 o
f 

w
e
lc

o
m

in
g
 k

in
, 

an
d

 p
ro

v
id

es
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

g
ro

w
th

 o
f 

h
e
al

th
y

 c
h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 a
 h

ea
lt

h
y
 f

a
m

il
y
; 

an
d

 

  
W

h
er

ea
s,

 m
o

u
n
ti

n
g

 s
ci

e
n
ti

fi
c
 e

v
id

en
ce

 c
o

n
fi

rm
s 

th
at

 t
h
e 

b
es

t 
en

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
t 

fo
r 

ch
il

d
re

n
 t

o
 f

lo
u
ri

sh
 i

s 
in

 b
ei

n
g
 r

ai
se

d
 b

y
 p

ar
en

ts
 i

n
 h

ea
lt

h
y
 m

ar
ri

ag
e
s,

 a
n
d

 

th
es

e 
ch

il
d

re
n
 d

e
m

o
n

st
ra

te
 l

es
s 

b
eh

av
io

ra
l 

p
ro

b
le

m
s 

in
 s

ch
o

o
l,

 a
re

 l
es

s 
li

k
el

y
 t

o
 b

e 
a 

v
ic

ti
m

 o
f 

p
h

y
si

ca
l 

o
r 

se
x
u
al

 a
b

u
se

, 
le

ss
 l

ik
el

y
 t

o
 a

b
u
se

 d
ru

g
s 

an
d

 a
lc

o
h
o

l,
 l

es
s 

li
k
el

y
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
it

 d
el

in
q

u
en

t 
b

eh
av

io
rs

, 
a
n
d

 a
re

 l
es

s 
li

k
el

y
 t

o
 b

e 
ra

is
ed

 i
n
 p

o
v
er

ty
; 

an
d

 

  
W

h
er

ea
s,

 h
ea

lt
h

y
 m

ar
ri

a
g
es

 p
ro

te
ct

 a
d

u
lt

s 
as

 w
el

l 
a
s 

c
h
il

d
re

n
, 

m
o

th
er

s 
as

 w
el

l 
a
s 

fa
th

er
s 

a
n
d

 r
es

ea
rc

h
 i

n
d

ic
at

e
s 

th
at

 w
o

m
en

 i
n

 h
ea

lt
h

y
 r

el
at

io
n
sh

ip
s 

ex
p

er
ie

n
ce

 m
o

re
 p

h
y
si

ca
l 

an
d

 e
m

o
ti

o
n
al

 h
ea

lt
h
, 

g
re

at
er

 w
ea

lt
h
, 

ar
e 

le
ss

 l
ik

el
y
 t

o
 b

e 
v

ic
ti

m
s 

o
f 

d
o

m
es

ti
c 

v
io

le
n
ce

, 
se

x
u
al

 a
ss

a
u
lt

, 
o

r 
o

th
er

 v
io

le
n
t 

cr
im

e
s,

 l
es

s 
li

k
el

y
 t

o
 

at
te

m
p

t 
o

r 
co

m
m

it
 s

u
ic

id
e,

 h
a
v
e 

d
ec

ea
se

d
 r

is
k
 o

f 
d

ru
g
s 

o
r 

al
co

h
o

l 
u
se

 a
n
d

 m
o

re
 l

ik
el

y
 t

o
 h

av
e 

b
et

te
r 

re
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
ei

r 
ch

il
d

re
n

; 
an

d
 

  
W

h
er

ea
s,

 r
es

ea
rc

h
 a

ls
o

 i
n
d

ic
a
te

s 
th

at
 m

e
n
 i

n
 h

ea
lt

h
y
 m

ar
ri

ag
es

 l
iv

e 
lo

n
g
er

, 
ar

e 
p

h
y
si

ca
ll

y
 a

n
d

 e
m

o
ti

o
n
al

ly
 h

ea
lt

h
ie

r 
an

d
 w

ea
lt

h
ie

r,
 h

a
v
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d
 s

ta
b

il
it

y
 

o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

en
t,

 h
ig

h
er

 w
ag

e
s,

 d
ec

re
as

ed
 r

is
k
 o

f 
d

ru
g
 a

n
d

 a
lc

o
h
o

l 
ab

u
se

, 
h
av

e 
b

et
te

r 
re

la
ti

o
n
sh

ip
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
ei

r 
ch

il
d

re
n
 a

n
d

 a
re

 l
es

s 
li

k
el

y
 t

o
 a

tt
e
m

p
t 

o
r 

co
m

m
it

 s
u
ic

id
e;

  

an
d

 

  
W

h
er

ea
s,

 t
h
e 

C
it

y
 o

f 
B

ra
w

le
y

 a
ck

n
o

w
le

d
g
e
s 

th
e 

im
p

o
rt

an
c
e 

o
f 

la
st

in
g
, 

h
ea

lt
h

y
 m

ar
ri

ag
e
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

w
el

l-
b

ei
n

g
 o

f 
c
h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 t
h
e 

fu
tu

re
 o

f 
o

u
r 

co
m

m
u
n
it

y
. 

P
h

y
si

ca
ll

y
, 

e
m

o
ti

o
n
al

ly
, 

h
ea

lt
h

y
 
a
n
d

 
ed

u
ca

te
d

 
ci
ti
ze
n
’s

 
e
x
p

er
ie

n
ce

 
d

ec
re

as
ed

 
d

o
m

es
ti

c 
v
io

le
n
ce

 
ra

te
s,

 
cr

im
e 

st
at

is
ti

cs
, 

te
en

a
g
e 

p
re

g
n
a
n
c
y
 
ra

te
s,

 
an

d
 
ju

v
en

il
e 

d
el

in
q

u
e
n
c
y
; 

  
W

h
er

ea
s,

 h
ig

h
er

 r
at

e
s 

o
f 

h
o

m
e 

o
w

n
er

sh
ip

, 
h
ig

h
er

 p
ro

p
er

ty
 v

al
u
e
s,

 a
n
d

 o
v
er

al
l 

d
ec

re
as

ed
 n

ee
d

 o
f 

so
ci

al
 s

er
v
ic

es
, 

re
ce

n
t 

ad
v
an

ce
s 

in
 r

es
ea

rc
h
 h

a
v
e
 h

el
p

ed
 t

o
 

id
en

ti
fy

 t
h
e 

b
eh

a
v
io

rs
 a

n
d

 s
k
il

ls
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 f
o

r 
a 

h
ea

lt
h

y
 r

el
at

io
n
sh

ip
. 

F
u
rt

h
er

m
o

re
, 

w
e 

n
o

w
 h

av
e 

p
ro

v
en

 m
et

h
o

d
s 

fo
r 

te
ac

h
in

g
 t

h
es

e 
sk

il
ls

 a
n
d

 b
eh

av
io

rs
; 

an
d

  

  
N

o
w

 t
h

er
ef

o
re

, 
b

e 
it

 r
es

o
lv

ed
, 

I 
N

o
rm

a
 K

a
st

n
er

-J
a

u
re

g
u

i,
 M

a
y
o

r 
o

f 
th

e 
C

it
y
 o

f 
B

ra
w

le
y

, 
d

o
 h

er
eb

y
 p

ro
cl

ai
m

 t
h
e 

w
ee

k
 o

f 
F

eb
ru

ar
y
 7

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 1

4
, 

2
0
2

0
 b

e 

p
ro

cl
ai

m
ed

 a
s 
“N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

M
a

rr
ia

g
e
 W

e
e
k

”
. 

 In
 w

it
n

es
s 

h
er

eo
f,

 I
 h

a
ve

 h
er

e
u

n
to

 s
et

 m
y 

h
a

n
d
 

ca
u

se
d

 t
h

e 
S

ea
l 

o
f 

th
e
 C

it
y 

o
f 

B
ra

w
le

y 
to

 b
e
 

fi
x

ed
 o

n
 t

h
is

 4
th

 d
a

y 
o

f 
F

eb
ru

a
ry

, 
2

0
2
0

. 

 _
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_

_
_

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
_

_
_

_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_

_
_

 
 

N
or

m
a 

K
as

tn
er

-J
au

re
gu

i,
 M

ay
o

r 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

lm
a 

B
en

av
id

es
, 

C
it

y
 C

le
rk

  
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



RESOLUTION NO. 20- 

 

  RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BRAWLEY, CALIFORNIA 

 AUTHORIZING A CONTINUOUS RESOLUTION DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE FOR 

 BRAWLEY POLICE DEPARTMENT PUBLIC RECORDS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Brawley Police Department seeks a Continuous Resolution 

authorizing a Records Retention Schedule and authorizing the destruction of 

records pursuant to a records retention schedule in compliance with the 

California State Archived Records Retention Guidelines; and  

 WHEREAS, the Brawley Police Department has limited storage space in its 

current location and is in possession of records accompanying 

property/evidence items dating back several years and wishes to destroy these 

records on a predetermined/prescribed schedule in accordance with the 

California Government Code; and 

 WHEREAS, the Chief of Police, as the Head of the Department and 

Custodian of Public Records, is authorized by the California Government Code 

§34090 to direct and order the destruction of obsolete records and documents 

with only limited exceptions; and 

 WHEREAS, attachments A, B, & C which delineate guidelines for a 

continuous destruction schedule for public records in accordance with all 

existing Government Code, Statutes attached hereto, have been reviewed by the 

City Attorney; and  

 WHEREAS, the City Attorney has agreed this retention and destruction 

scheduled may be conducted as defined by Government Code as an ongoing 

process; and  

 WHEREAS, the most current regulations and legislation related to Public 

Records retention and destruction have been included; and 

 WHEREAS, this resolution will act as a living document which 

incorporates any revisions, additions, deletions of Government Code and 

Statutes pertaining to record retention or destruction as they may be 

enacted, without requiring formal submission, review, and ratification by the 

City Council, however, at a minimum, the records retention and destruction 

shall be reviewed every five years by the City Attorney in order to insure 

that it is in compliance with any changes in the law;  

 NOW, THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BRAWLEY, CALIFORNIA, 

DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOW: 

1. That the Chief of Police is authorized, with the approval of the 

City Council of the City of Brawley and the prior approval of the 

City Attorney, to begin the implementation of this continuous and 

cyclic/on-going destruction schedule of public records. 

 

2. The Chief of Police shall cause the policy adopted herein to be 

reviewed at least once every five years by the City Attorney and the 

City Attorney shall be responsible to modify the policy as needed to 

reflect changes in the applicable law. 

 

41



3. The Chief of Police shall ensure that records that are required to 

be destroyed pursuant to the policy adopted herein are destroyed in 

a timely manner without any unreasonable delay. 

 

 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Brawley City 

Council held on February 4, 2020. 

 

        CITY OF BRAWLEY, CALIFORNIA 

 

 

           ___________  

        Norma Kastner-Jauregui, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Alma Benavides, City Clerk 

 

 

 I, ALMA BENAVIDES, City Clerk of the City of Brawley, California, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020-  was passed and 

adopted by the City Council of the City of Brawley, California, at a regular 

meeting held on the 4th day of February 2020, and that it was so adopted by 

the following roll call vote:   

 

 AYES:    

 NAYES:   

 ABSTAIN:  

 ABSENT:  

 

DATED:   February 4, 2020    __________________________ 

        Alma Benavides, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

42



EXHIBIT A 

 

RECORDS DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE 

CITY OF BRAWLEY POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

California State Law requires the collection and processing of certain 

records.  As certain records become less valuable and reliable as an 

information resource with the passage of time, their continued retention 

inhibits an agency’s ability to reference more current and valuable 

information sources. 

The Brawley Police Department Records Division is tasked with receiving, 

processing, retrieving, storage and purging these documents and digital 

information/record, in accordance with California Law and Department Policy. 

The Records Division Supervisor is responsible for the accurate filing, 

proper storage, timely purging and security of all Department Records in both 

physical and digital forms. 

The Intent of this order is to provide requirements for retention and 

destruction of records (documents and stored digital information), using 

those sections of California State law which mandate applicable time periods 

for specific records as a guideline. 

If the Brawley Police Department has knowledge of and is aware of any pending 

criminal or civil action which has been filed with regards to any report or 

record, that report or record shall be retained/maintained as records until 

such action has been fully adjudicated.  

A list of all police reports which are destroyed will be compiled and 

retained for reference.  Any evidence or property associated with destroyed 

reports will also be destroyed or purged in a proper manner and in compliance 

with department policy and applicable law.  The record destruction process 

will include the updating of any automated records management systems 

(Spillman) to reflect the destruction of the pertinent information as noted 

in exhibit A. 

The following records shall be maintained in the manner noted below, unless 

otherwise excepted: 

A. Reports/documents maintained indefinitely: 

 

a. Missing Persons not cleared 
b. Homicide Reports 
c. Active and inactive 290 registrant files, except those 

records falling under PC290(d)(1) for juveniles paroled 

after Jan. 1, 1986 

d. Misdemeanor or felony accident reports involving on-duty 

employees 

e. Offenses punishable by death, life without parole 

(including juvenile offenders) or embezzlement of public 

money (PC 799) 

f. Juvenile records pertaining to offenses enumerated under 

WIC 707(b), pursuant to Proposition 21 provisions 

g. Felony reports involving DNA evidence will be retained in 
accordance with California Cold Hit Program guidelines or 

until terms of incarceration are met, whichever is 

43



applicable (PC803(h)) 

h. Auction, drug burns, and gun trade documentary cases 
i. Kidnapping for ransom 
j. Falsification of public records 
k. Reports with property outstanding in DOJ/NCIC 
l. 11590 H&S drug registrants (terminated by court order) 
m. Rape 
 

The following records shall be retained for the length noted and then 

destroyed: 

B. Employee Background Files 

 

All components of pre-employment generated by the police department 

training and Recruitment Division with regard to background files 

of applicants not hired shall be retained for five years from the date 

of completion.  Background files of current employees shall be retained 

for five years after the date of separation. 

 

C. Employee Personnel Files 
 

All components of a current or former employee's personnel file, 

including employee training records, shall be retained for a period of 

five years from the date of separation. (Master Personnel Files 

retained by Human Resources Department).  

 

D. Internal Investigation/Citizen Complaint Investigation Files 

 

All components of internally generated investigations and   

investigations related to citizen complaints shall be retained for a 

period of five years from the date of the complaint, regardless of the 

results of the investigation (except if an internal investigation or 

citizen complaint file is destroyed, then all reference to either one 

in an employee's personnel file shall be removed). 

 

E. Accident Review Reports Involving Employees 
 

All Accident Review reports shall be retained for a period of five 

years from the date of the incident, regardless of the results of the 

investigation, except if an Accident Review Board report is destroyed, 

then all reference to it in an employee's personnel file shall be 

removed. 

 

F. Recordings of Audio (telephone and radio) and Video Mediums 

 

Recordings of telephone and radio communications shall be retained for 

one hundred and eighty (180) days, except if any recording is evidence 

in any potential, pending or active criminal or civil legal action, 

known to the Brawley Police Department, in which case, it shall be 

preserved for one hundred (100) days after the conclusion of the action 

(34090.6 G.C.). Video recordings that are evidence in any investigation 

or claim filed or any pending litigation known to the Brawley Police 

Department will be preserved until the litigation is resolved or 

statute of limitations for the offense has expired. 

 

G. The following documents shall be retained for two years: 
 

44



1. Citations for parking violations 

2. Parking records (payments, reports, permits, hearings, 

 misc.) 

3. Miscellaneous correspondence not related to other public 

 records 

4. Records for expired licenses and permits 

5. Repossession notices 

6. Daily activity records, shift logs, and press 

 logs/releases 

7. All index cards and logs related to destroyed case 

 documents 

8. Field interview cards and field interview reports 

9. Duplicates of all reports, when the 

 duplicates are no longer needed (including 

 copies of reports from another criminal 

 justice agency) 

10. Audit logs for manual/automated criminal 

 history teletypes or printouts 

11.    Reports of lost and found items, which have been lawfully             
disposed of 

12. Abandoned vehicle reports 

13. Courtesy/warning  citations 

14. Applications for employment/volunteers 

15. Time off slips 

16.  Works schedules/rosters 

17. Incident reports 

18. Minutes of staff meetings 

19. Miscellaneous traffic reports 

20. Training bulletins (outdated and officially rescinded) 

21. Automated License Plate Reader information (ALPR) 

 

H. The following documents shall be retained for three years: 

 

1. Purchase orders (retained by Finance Department) 
2. Retainable arrests which are later termed "Detention Only" 

per 849(b) PC 

 

   I. The following documents shall be retained for five years: 

 

1. Administrative reports 
2. Arson registrants (terminated upon Court Order) 
3. Budget worksheets/miscellaneous budget records 
4. Chief's correspondence 
5. Department memorandums and notices 
6. Payroll records 
7. Sick leave and overtime records 

8. Expired TRO's 

9. Misdemeanor citations (see L below for exception) 

10.Missing persons reports which have been cleared 

11.Moving violation citations 

12.Brawley Municipal code violations     

    

J. The following documents shall be retained for five years: 

 

1. Case report ledgers 

2. Department statistics - Bureau of Criminal    

 Statistics 

45



3. Investigative files 

 

K. Traffic collision reports, which are not the subject or basis of 

criminal or civil action, shall be purged after five years. Traffic 

accident reports involving a fatality shall be kept for a period of ten 

years. 

 

L. The following drug violation arrests shall be purged two years after 
arrest or conviction providing no civil action is pending: 

 

1. Reports and citations for H&S 11357 (c), (d), or (e) 

2. Reports and citations for H&S 11360(b) 

 

M. All crime and supplemental reports for infractions and misdemeanors 

will be destroyed after five years and all crime and supplemental 

reports for felonies will be destroyed after seven years providing: 

 

1. They do not relate to an non-adjudicated arrest, except for 
 Section I above 

2. They do not relate to unserved warrants 
3. They do not involve identifiable items which have not been 

recovered 

4. They do not relate to 290 PC or 457 .1 PC or 11590 H&S 
registrants 

5. They do not relate to a criminal death case 
6. The cases are not presently involved in either civil or 

criminal litigation 

7. They do not involve sealed records for any person found 

factually innocent under section 851.8 PC 

8. They do not relate to a City of Brawley employee 
 

Exception: Certain crime reports may be delayed in destruction based on Penal 

Code sections governing statutes of limitation for commencement of 

prosecution: 

 

1. §800 PC: Offenses punishable by imprisonment for 8 years or              

more shall be kept for 6 years after offense was committed 

2. §801 PC: Offenses punishable by imprisonment in state 

prison, such as for fraud or elder abuse convictions, shall 

be kept for 6 years after offense was committed 

3. §802 PC: Offenses not punishable by death or imprisonment; 

misdemeanor violation of 647.6 or 647 (a) shall be kept for 

2 years after offense was committed 

 

N. Records for registrants covered by 11590 H&S (Narcotic Registrant) 

Shall be destroyed five years after completion of probation or parole 

when all requirements are completed. 

 

O. Juvenile records will be purged as noted: 

 

1. Sealed juvenile records for 851.8 PC, 1203.4 PC, and 

 781(a) W&I will be destroyed five years after 

 termination of juvenile court jurisdiction based  on a 

 destruction petition from the court. 

2.  Sealed juvenile records pursuant to 290(d)(1 ), when 

offender was paroled or discharged after January 1, 1986, 

46



will be purged five years after termination of juvenile 

court jurisdiction. 

3.  All other sealed juvenile records will be kept for five 

years and then purged. 

 

47



EXHIBIT B 

 
CODES AND STATUTES COMPILED AND CONTAINED IN EXHIBIT A 

 
Government Code §34090: Destruction of City Records; excepted records; construction. 

 
“Unless otherwise provided by law, with the approval of the legislative body by resolution and the 
written consent of the agency attorney, the head of a city department may destroy any city record, 
document, instrument, book, or paper, under his charge, without making a copy thereof, after the 
same is no longer required. 

This section does not authorize the destruction of: 

 Records affecting title to real property or liens thereon; 
Court records; 
Records required to be kept by statute 
Records less than two (2) years old; 

The minutes, ordinances, or resolutions of the legislative  body or of a city board or commission 

This section shall not be construed as limiting or qualifying in any manner the authority provided in 
§34090.5 for the destruction of records, documents, instruments, books and papers in accordance with 
the procedure therein prescribed." 

Government Code §34090.5: Destruction of Records; conditions. 
 

“Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 34090, the city officer having custody of public 
records, documents, instruments, books, and papers, may, without the approval of the legislative 
body or the written consent of the city attorney, cause to be destroyed any or all of the records, 
documents, instruments, books, and papers, if all of the following conditions are complied with: 
 
(a) The record, paper, or document is photographed, micro-photographed (Laserfische), 
reproduced by electronically recorded video images on magnetic surfaces, recorded in the 
electronic data processing system, recorded on optical disk, reproduced on film or any other 
medium that is a trusted system and that does not permit additions, deletions, or changes to the 
original document, or reproduced on film, optical disk, or any other medium in compliance with 
Section 12168.7 for recording of permanent records or nonpermanent records. 
 
(b) The device used to reproduce the record, paper, or document on film, optical disk, or any 
other medium is one which accurately and legibly reproduces the original thereof in all details 
and that does not permit additions, deletions, or changes to the original document images. 
 
(c) The photographs, microphotographs, or other reproductions on film, optical disk, or any other 
medium are made as accessible for public reference as the original records were. 
  
(d) A true copy of archival quality of the film, optical disk, or any other medium reproductions 
shall be kept in a safe and separate place for security purposes.  

48



However, no page of any record, paper, or document shall be destroyed if any page cannot be 
reproduced on film with full legibility. Every unreproducible page shall be permanently preserved 
in a manner that will afford easy reference.  
For the purposes of this section, every reproduction shall be deemed to be an original record and 
a transcript, exemplification, or certified copy of any reproduction shall be deemed to be a 
transcript, exemplification, or certified copy, as the case may be, of the original.” 
 

Government Code §34090.6: Destruction of recorded radio and telephone communications. 
 

“(a) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 34090, the head of a department of a city or city 
and county, after one year, may destroy recordings of routine video monitoring, and after 100 
days may destroy recordings of telephone and radio communications maintained by the 
department. This destruction shall be approved by the legislative body and the written consent 
of the agency attorney shall be obtained. In the event that the recordings are evidence in any 
claim filed or any pending litigation, they shall be preserved until pending litigation is resolved. 
 
(b) For purposes of this section, “recordings of telephone and radio communications” means the 
routine daily recording of telephone communications to and from a city, city and county, or 
department, and all radio communications relating to the operations of the departments. 
 
(c) For purposes of this section, “routine video monitoring” means video recording by a video or 
electronic imaging system designed to record the regular and ongoing operations of the 
departments described in subdivision (a), including mobile in-car video systems, jail observation 
and monitoring systems, and building security recording systems. 
 
(d) For purposes of this section, “department” includes a public safety communications center 
operated by the city or city and county.” 

 
Government Code §34090.7:  Duplicate records less than two (2) years old; destruction; video 
recording media. 
 

“Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 34090, the legislative body of a city may prescribe a 
procedure whereby duplicates of city records less than two years old may be destroyed if they 
are no longer required. 

 
For purposes of this section, video recording media, including recordings of “routine video 
monitoring” pursuant to Section 34090.6, shall be considered duplicate records if the city keeps 
another record, such as written minutes or an audio recording, of the event that is recorded in 
the video medium. However, a video recording medium shall not be destroyed or erased 
pursuant to this section for a period of at least 90 days after occurrence of the event recorded 
thereon.” 

 
Health & Safety Code §11361.5(a):  Destruction of arrest and conviction records; applicable offenses; 
method; records not applicable; costs. 
 

"Records of any court of this state, any public or private agency that provides services upon 
referral under Section 1000.2 of the Penal Code, or of any state agency pertaining to the arrest 
or conviction of any person for a violation of subdivision (a), (b), (c), (d) or (e) of Section 11357 or 

49



subdivision (b) of Section 11360, shall not be kept beyond two years from the date of the 
conviction, or from the date of the arrest, if there was no conviction, except with respect to a 
violation of subdivision (e) of Section 11357 the records shall be retained until the offender 
attains the age of 18 years at which time the records shall be destroyed as provided in this 
section ..." 

 
Health & Safety Code §11361.5(c):  Method of destruction. 
 

“Destruction of records of arrest or conviction pursuant to subdivision (a) or (b) shall be 
accomplished by permanent obliteration of all entries or notations upon the records pertaining 
to the arrest or conviction, and the record shall be prepared again so that it appears that the 
arrest or conviction never occurred. However, where (1) the only entries upon the record pertain 
to the arrest or conviction and (2) the record can be destroyed without necessarily effecting the 
destruction of other records, then the document constituting the record shall be physically 
destroyed.” 

 
Welfare & Institutions Code §781(a):  Petition for sealing of records; notice; hearing; grounds for and 
effect of order; inspection and destruction of records; disclosure in criminal proceeding. 
 

"(C) In any case in which a ward of the juvenile court is subject to the registration requirements 
set forth in Section 290 of the Penal Code, a court, in ordering the sealing of the juvenile records 
of the person, also shall provide in the order that the person is relieved from the registration 
requirements and for the destruction of all registration information in the custody of the 
Department of Justice and other agencies and officials. 
 
(D) The court shall not order the person's records sealed in any case in which the person has 
been found by the juvenile court to have committed an offense listed in subdivision (b) of Section 
707 when he or she had attained 14 years of age or older.  

…Once the court has ordered the person's records sealed ...The court shall send a copy of the 
order to each agency and official named therein, directing the agency to seal its records and 
stating the date thereafter to destroy the sealed records..." 

 
Welfare & Institutions Code §781(C)(3)(d):   

" ...the court shall order the destruction of a person's juvenile court records that are sealed 
pursuant to this section as follows: five years after the records were ordered sealed, ...or when 
the person ...reaches the age of 38 . ..except if the subject of the record was found to be a person 
described in Section 602 because of the commission of an offense listed in subdivision (b) of 
Section 707, when he or she was 14 years of age or older, the record shall not be destroyed ..." 

Penal Code sections cited for Statute of Limitations for records retention: 

§799 Offenses punishable by death or life imprisonment; embezzlement of public money; 
application to minors. 

§800  Offenses punishable by imprisonment for eight years or more 
§801  Offenses punishable by imprisonment for 6 years or more 
          Fraud; breach of fiduciary duty; official misconduct 
          Elder or dependent adult offenses 

50



§802 Offenses not punishable by death or imprisonment; misdemeanor violation of Section 
647.6 or former Section 647(a); sexual offense of physician, surgeon or psychotherapist 
with patients 

§803(h)   Toll or extension of time periods referenced to Cold Hit Program 
§804  Commencement of prosecution for an offense 
 
§805  Determination of applicable time limitation 
§805.5  Operative date; application of chapter 
§832.5  Procedure for investigation of citizen's complaints against personnel; investigation; 

description of procedure; retention of records. 
  PC 186.32(c)    Gang registrants 
  PC 290(d)(1)  Registration of Sex Offenders 
  PC 290(d)(4)  Juvenile Registration 
  PC 851.8  Sealing adult arrest record – Factual Innocence  
Health & Safety Codes cited: 
   
  §11361.5(a)  Violation of H&S11357(b),(c),(d),(e) or violation of  

H&S 11360(b)  
  §11361.5(b)  Violation of 11357, 11364, 11365, and 11550 
  §11361.5(c)  Definition of method of destruction  
  §11357(e)  Possession of marijuana by a juvenile 
 
(Welfare & Institution Codes): Gang Violence and Juvenile Crime Prevent Act - 1998: Proposition 21 
 

WIC 707(b) Retention of certain juvenile records, involving offenses of: 
1 Murder or attempted murder 
2 Assault with firearm or by means of force likely to 

produce great bodily injury 
3 Arson as provided in PC 451(b) 
4 Robbery 
5 Rape with force or violence 
6 Sodomy by force, violence 
7 Lewd or lascivious acts as provided in PC288(a) 
8 Kidnapping for ransom or purpose of robbery with 

bodily harm 
9 Discharging firearm into inhabited or occupied building 
10 Any offense in Section PC1203.09, 12022.5 or 12022.53 

WIC 781(a) Petition for sealing juvenile records 
WIC 826(a), (b) Release, destruction, reproduction of court records 
 

 

 

 

 

 

51



EXHIBIT C 

2 Years 

 Abandoned Vehicle Reports 
 Courtesy Citations for Outside Agencies 
 Daily Radio/Dispatch Logs 
 Lost Property Reports 
 Staff Meeting Minutes 
 Incident Reports 
 Employment Records; 
  Applications for Employment (Human Resources Division) 
  Time off Slips  

Work Schedules 
 Parking Citations 
 Parking Records (Payments, Reports, Permits, Hearings) 
 Record of Expired Licenses and Permits 
 Repossession Notices 
 
3 Years 

 Retainable Arrests which are later deemed “Detention Only” per §849(b)PC 

5 Years  

Sex Offender PC Registrants (terminated only upon Court Order) 
Arson Registrants (terminated only upon Court Order) 
Traffic Accident Reports  
Administrative Reports 
Background Investigation Files 
Budget Worksheets/Miscellaneous Budget Records (if not retained by Finance) 
Chief’s Official Correspondence 
Courtesy Reports for Outside Agencies 
Department Memorandums and Orders 
Miscellaneous Complaint Reports 
Employment Records;  

Employee Complaint Files  
Payroll Records 
Personnel Files (upon separation of employment)  
Sick and Overtime Records 
Officer Complaint Files  

 Misdemeanor Citations 
  Except 11357(b), c, (d), (e) or 11360 (b) H&S purged per 11361.5 H&S 
 Misdemeanor Crime Reports Providing: 
  There is no outstanding warrant related to the Report 

There is no property outstanding in DOJ or NCIC  
It is not involved in Civil or Criminal Litigation   
It does not involve a City of Brawley Employee 
There is no previous destruction order from a judge pursuant to 851.8 PC 

52



 Cleared Missing Persons 
 Moving Violation Citations 
 Brawley Municipal Code Violations 
 Sealed Juvenile Records 
 
7 Years 
 
 Felony Crime Reports Providing: 

There is no outstanding warrant related to the Report  
There is no death connected with the Report 
There is no property outstanding in DOJ or NCIC 
It does not involve Civil or Criminal Litigation 
It is not classified under Sections 290, 799 and 800 PC or 11850 H&S 

 
10 years 
 

Department Statistics - Bureau of Criminal Justice Statistics  
Investigative Files 

 
Indefinitely 
  
 Auction, drug burns, and gun trade documentary cases, firearms destruction 
 Falsification of Public Records 
 Gun Registrations 
 Kidnapping, Treason, and all Federal Crimes without Statute of Limitations 
 Kidnapping for Ransom 
 Missing Persons Not Located 
 Murder 
 Rape 
 Narcotic Registrants (terminated only by Court Order) 
 

53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BRAWLEY, CALIFORNIA, 

AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF THE CITY OF BRAWLEY’S 5-YEAR PROGRAM LIST OF 

PROJECTS FUNDED BY MEASURE D FORTY YEAR STREET PROGRAM FOR YEARS 2020 THROUGH 

2024 BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2020 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2024. 

 

WHEREAS, Imperial County Transportation Commission (ICTC), requires 

that the LTA forty (40) years program of Street Projects be approved every 

five years; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the existing forty-year program 

of projects; 

 

STREET FROM TO 
PROJECT 

DESCRIPTION 

A St. Magnolia St. Rail Road Resurface 

A St. Cesar Chavez St. End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

A St. Eastern Ave. Concord Ave. Resurface 

Abel Velasco St. End of Cul-de-sac Seventh St. Resurface 

Acorn Ct. Walnut St. End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Adams St. River Dr. B St. Resurface 

Adams St. Leonard St. Malan St. Resurface 

Adler Ct. End of Cul-de-sac Fifth St. Resurface 

Adler St. Rio Vista Ave. El Cerrito Dr. Resurface 

Adler St. Seventh St. Eighth St. Resurface 

Adler St.  Palm Ave. Eastern Ave. Resurface 

Alamo Ct. End of Cul-de-sac Chestnut Ave. Resurface 

Alamo St. Chestnut Ave. Imperial Ave. Resurface 

Allen St. Marilyn Ave. Western Ave. Resurface 

Andrita Pl. I St. G St. Resurface 

Appaloosa St. First St. Echo Canyon Dr. Resurface 

Apple Way Imperial Ave. Walnut St. Resurface 

Armando Aviles St. End of Cul-de-sac Seventh St. Resurface 

Arroyo Ct. End of Cul-de-sac End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Ash St. End of Cul-de-sac Eucalyptus Ave. Resurface 

Avenida de Colimbo Malan St. Avenida de la Paloma Resurface 

Avenida de Tortola End of Cul-de-sac Avenida de la Paloma Resurface 

Avenida del Valle Legion St. Calle Estrella Resurface 

B St. West End of St. Imperial Ave. Resurface 

B St. Seventh St. East End St. Resurface 

Bele Ct. Calle de Golondrina End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Bell Ct. Second St. End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Best Ave. Northern City Limits Southern City Limits Resurface 

Bina St. River Dr. Magnolia St. Resurface 

Birch St. End of Cul-de-sac Joshua Ave. Resurface 

67



Boswell Ct. Driftwood Pl. C St. Resurface 

Branding Iron Ave. Monterey St. South End of St. Resurface 

Buitre Ct. End of Cul-de-sac End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

C St. West End of St. El Cerrito Dr. Resurface 

C St. Boswell Ct. Eighth St. Resurface 

C St. Rail Road Palm Ave. Resurface 

C St. Thirteenth St. Concord Ave. Resurface 

Calle de Vida Avenida del Valle Kelly Ave. Resurface 

Calle del Cielo Avenida del Valle Richard Ave. Resurface 

Calle de Golondrina Avenida de Colimbo Enara Ct. Resurface 

Calle de Valenzuela Eastern Ave. Enara Ct. Resurface 

Calle del Sol La Valencia Dr. Richard Ave. Resurface 

Calle Estrella Avenida del Valle Richard Ave. Resurface 

Calle Luna Avenida del Valle Richard Ave. Resurface 

Cameron Ct. Bell Ct. End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Cattle Call Dr. Around Cattle Call Park SHWY 86 Resurface 

Cedar Ct. End of Cul-de-sac Jones St. Resurface 

Cesar Chavez St. River Dr. Malan St. Resurface 

Cessna Ave. Franklin Pl. Lexington St. Resurface 

Chaparral Ct. End of Cul-de-sac Voet Dr. Resurface 

Cherry Ct. Flammang Ave. End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Chestnut Ave. Alamo St. Jones St. Resurface 

Cristina Najar St. End of Cul-de-sac Seventh St. Resurface 

Christine Carmargo St. End of Cul-de-sac Seventh St. Resurface 

Colegrove Ave. Duarte St. River Dr. Resurface 

Concord Ave. Princeton St. South End of St. Resurface 

Corral Ct. End of Cul-de-sac End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Cortez Ct.  Magnolia St. End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Crestview Dr. River Wood Dr. Ridge Park Dr. Resurface 

D St. Pinner Dr. Rail Road Resurface 

D St. Rail Road Eastern Ave. Resurface 

David St. Ronald St. Evelyn Ave. Resurface 

De Anza Pl. Allen St. Cattle Call Dr. Resurface 

Del Rio Rd. Del Rio Pl. Shank Resurface 

Del Rio Pl. HWY 111 Del Rio Rd. Resurface 

Dominguez Ct. Flammang Ave. End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Driftwood Dr. Rio Vista Ave. El Cerrito Dr. Resurface 

Driftwood Pl. Boswell Ct. Western Ave. Resurface 

Duarte St. End of Cul-de-sac Western Ave. Resurface 

Duarte St. Palm Ave. Eastern Ave. Resurface 

E St. Pinner Dr. Las Flores Dr. Resurface 

E St. Western Ave. Plaza St. Resurface 

E St. Fifth St. Rail Road Resurface 

68



E St. Rail Road Eastern Ave. Resurface 

Eastern Ave. End of Cul-de-sac Malan St. Resurface 

Earhart Ave. Lexington St. South End of St. Resurface 

Echo Canyon Dr. Monterey St. South End of St. Resurface 

Edgley Dr. Julia Dr. End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Eighteenth St. K St. Malan St. Resurface 

Eighth St. K St. North City Limits Resurface 

El Cerrito Dr. Duarte St. Driftwood Pl. Resurface 

El Cerrito Dr. C St. D St. Resurface 

El Cerrito Dr. Main St. Cattle Call Dr. Resurface 

Eleventh St. River Dr. Magnolia St. Resurface 

Eleventh St. B St. E St. Resurface 

Eleventh St. H St. Malan St. Resurface 

Ell St. Third St. Imperial Ave. Resurface 

Elm Ct. Walnut St. End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Emma Pl. Kindig Ave. Shelbie Ave. Resurface 

Enara Ct. End of Cul-de-sac Calle de Golondrina Resurface 

Essex Ln. Seabolt Dr. Lexington St. Resurface 

Eucalyptus Ave. Jones St. End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Eucalyptus Ct. End of Cul-de-sac Pine Ct. Resurface 

Evelyn Ave. End of Cul-de-sac Legion St. Resurface 

Fifth St. River Dr. A St. Resurface 

Fifth St. C St. Plaza St. Resurface 

Fifth St. Plaza St. South End of St. Resurface 

First St. River Dr. Main St. Resurface 

First St. K St. Julia Dr. Resurface 

First St. Monterey St. South End of St. Resurface 

Flammang Ave. Jones St. Seventh St. Resurface 

Fourteenth St. Adler St. Alley Resurface 

Fourteenth St. C St. D St. Resurface 

Fourteenth St. H St. J St. Resurface 

Fourteenth St. K St. Malan St. Resurface 

G St. West End of St. Rio Vista St. Resurface 

G St. El Cerrito Dr. Plaza St. Resurface 

G St. Fifth St. Palm Ave. Resurface 

Ganado Dr. Slider Rd. Best Ave. Resurface 

Garrett St. K St. Ell St. Resurface 

Gilmour St. K St. Malan St. Resurface 

Glendening Ct. La Valencia Dr. End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Grapefruit Dr. Fifth St. Malan St. Resurface 

Gutierrez Ct. Flammang Ave. End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

H St. West End of St. El Cerrito Dr. Resurface 

H St. First St. Eighth St. Resurface 

69



H St. Ninth St. Eastern Ave. Resurface 

Hatfield Ct. End of Cul-de-sac Flammang Ave. Resurface 

Havilland Ave. Taxiway St. River Dr. Resurface 

Hickory Ct. Flammang Ave. End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Hontza Ct. End of Cul-de-sac Calle de Valenzuela Resurface 

I St. El Cerrito Dr. Eighth St. Resurface 

I St. Ninth St. Best Ave. Resurface 

Imperial Ave. Northern City Limits Southern City Limits Resurface 

Ivy St. Ninth St. Alley Resurface 

Ivy St. Palm Ave. Thirteenth St. Resurface 

J St. Terrace Cir. Eighth St. Resurface 

J St. Ninth St. Eastern Ave. Resurface 

Jacaranda St. C St. Manzanita St. Resurface 

Jennifer St. Ronald St. Evelyn Ave. Resurface 

Jones St. Rio Vista Ave. Imperial Ave. Resurface 

Jones St. Palm Ave. Best Ave. Resurface 

Joshua Ave. Birch St. Flammang Ave. Resurface 

Julia Dr. Willard Ave. SHWY 86 Resurface 

Julia Dr. Kindig Ave. Second St. Resurface 

K St. End of Cul-de-sac Eighteenth St. Resurface 

Kelly Ave. Ronald St. Calle Estrella Resurface 

Ken Bemis Dr. Airport  Jones St. Resurface 

Kindig Ave. Tyler Pl. Julia Dr. Resurface 

La Valencia Ct. La Valencia Dr. End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

La Valencia Dr. Legion St. South End of St. Resurface 

Las Flores Dr. North End of St. H St. Resurface 

Laurel St. Eucalyptus Ave. Flammang Ave. Resurface 

Legion St. West City Limits East End of St. Resurface 

Leonard St. Cesar Chavez St. Palm Ave. Resurface 

Lexington St. Seabolt Dr. Concord Ave. Resurface 

Lindbergh Ct. River Dr. Lexington St. Resurface 

Los Olivos Dr. North End of St. Legion St. Resurface 

Mackenzie Pl. End of Cul-de-sac Shelbie Ave. Resurface 

Madison Ave. Emma Pl. Julia Dr. Resurface 

Magnolia Ct. End of Cul-de-sac Fifth St. Resurface 

Magnolia St. B St. El Cerrito Dr. Resurface 

Magnolia St. First St. Third St. Resurface 

Magnolia St. Seventh St. Eighth St. Resurface 

Magnolia St. Cesar Chavez St. Eastern Ave. Resurface 

Main St. 1st St. City Limits Resurface 

Malan St. SHWY 86 Best Ave. Resurface 

Manzanita St. End of Cul-de-sac End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Maple Ct. End of Cul-de-sac Jones St. Resurface 

70



Marilyn Ave. J St. Cattle Call Dr. Resurface 

Marjorie Ave. Main St. H St. Resurface 

Martin Pl. Ninth St. Alley Resurface 

Martin St. Palm Ave. Thirteenth St. Resurface 

Mendibles Ct. End of Cul-de-sac Flammang Ave. Resurface 

Mesquite Ave. Olive Way End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Mika Ct. End of Cul-de-sac End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Milano Ct. End of Cul-de-sac End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Mita Ct. End of Cul-de-sac End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Monterey Dr. End of Cul-de-sac Echo Canyon Dr. Resurface 

Ninth St. B St. South End of St. Resurface 

Norman Ct. North End of St. Main St. Resurface 

N. Plaza St. Main St. Main St. Resurface 

O'Brian St. Rubio St. Eastern Ave. Resurface 

Olive St. Leonard St. South End of St. Resurface 

Olive Way Mesquite Ave. Chestnut Ave. Resurface 

Orchard Ln. End of Cul-de-sac Legion St. Resurface 

Orita Dr. Julia Dr. End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Palm Ave. Duarte St. Malan St. Resurface 

Palm Dr. Adler St. Magnolia St. Resurface 

Palm Dr. H St. I St. Resurface 

Panno Dr. Legion St. SHWY 86 Resurface 

Park View Dr. West End of St. Western Ave. Resurface 

Pater St. End of Cul-de-sac River Dr. Resurface 

Peach St. Eleventh St. Palm Ave. Resurface 

Pecan Ct. Walnut St. End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Pecan St. Alamo St. Walnut St. Resurface 

Pine Ct. End of Cul-de-sac End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Pine St. Maple Ct. Jones St. Resurface 

Pinner Dr. D St. South End of St. Resurface 

Princeton St. Havilland Ave. Concord Ave. Resurface 

Reina Ct. Imperial Ave. West End Resurface 

Richard Ave. Panno St. Calle Estrella Resurface 

Ridge Park Dr. Crestview Dr. River Wood Dr. Resurface 

Rio Vista Ave. Jones St. South End of St. Resurface 

River Dr. West City Limits Seventh St. Resurface 

River Dr. Cesar Chavez St. Concord Ave. Resurface 

River Way Western Ave. First St. Resurface 

River Wood Dr. Crestview Dr. Ridge Park Dr. Resurface 

Roberto Noriega St. End of Cul-de-sac Seventh St. Resurface 

Rodeo Dr. End of Cul-de-sac Willard Ave. Resurface 

Ronald St. Panno St. Evelyn Ave. Resurface 

Rubio St. Colegrove Ave. O'Brian St. Resurface 

71



Russel Dr. H St. Willard Ave. Resurface 

Santillan St. Second St. South End of St. Resurface 

Seabolt Dr. Taxiway St. Beacon St. Resurface 

Second St. Magnolia St. South End of St. Resurface 

Sequoia Ave. Jones St. Pater St. Resurface 

Sequoia Ct. End of Cul-de-sac Pine St. Resurface 

Seventeenth St. K St. Malan St. Resurface 

Seventh St. Christine Carmargo St. E St. Resurface 

Shank St. Eighth St. Best Ave. Resurface 

Shank St. Best Ave. City Limits Resurface 

Shelbie Ave. Macknezie Pl. Julia Dr. Resurface 

Sierra Dr. Julia Dr. End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Sixteenth St. River Dr. Magnolia St. Resurface 

Sixteenth St. K St. Malan St. Resurface 

Sixth St. D St. H St. Resurface 

Socorro Juarez St. End of Cul-de-sac Seventh St. Resurface 

South Plaza St. Main St. Main St. Resurface 

Spruce Ct. Flammang Ave. End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Stanley Pl. K St. Malan St. Resurface 

Steven St. Panno St. Evelyn Ave. Resurface 

Sunset Dr. River Way A St. Resurface 

Sycamore Dr. H St. J St. Resurface 

Sycamore Dr. Allen St. Cattle Call Dr. Resurface 

Terrace Cir. H St. Terrace Dr. Resurface 

Terrace Dr. H St. Terrace Cir. Resurface 

Third St. River Dr. C St. Resurface 

Third St. D St. Ell St. Resurface 

Thirteenth St. Adler St. B St. Resurface 

Thirteenth St. C St. E St. Resurface 

Thirteenth St. J St. Malan St. Resurface 

Trail St. Rio Vista Ave. Western Ave. Resurface 

Trail St. Palm Ave. Eastern Ave. Resurface 

Tyler Pl. Kindig Ave. End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Ulloa Ave. Magnolia St. D St. Resurface 

Vine Ave. K St. Malan St. Resurface 

Voet Dr. Arroyo Ct. Willard Ave. Resurface 

Walnut Ct. End of Cul-de-sac Flammang Ave. Resurface 

Walnut St. Alamo St. Apple Way Resurface 

Welcome St. Eleventh St. Palm Ave. Resurface 

Welcome St. End of Cul-de-sac Eastern Ave. Resurface 

Western Ave. North City Limits Cattle Call Dr. Resurface 

Wildcat Dr. SHWY 86 East End of St. Resurface 

Wildcat Dr. Best Ave. City Limits Resurface 

72



Willard Ave. H St. Legion St. Resurface 

Willow Ct. Walnut St. End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Wilson Ct. North End of St. I St. Resurface 

Wright Ct. River Dr. Lexington St. Resurface 

Zorzal Ct. Calle de Golondrina End of Cul-de-sac Resurface 

Zozoa Ct. End of Cul-de-sac Calle de Valenzuela Resurface 

 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Brawley City Council 

hereby does adopt the List of Projects funded by Measure D Forty-Year Program 

of Street Projects.  

 

 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Brawley City 

Council held on February 4, 2020. 

 

       CITY OF BRAWLEY, CALIFORNIA 

 

 

       __________________________________ 

       Norma Kastner-Jauregui, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Alma Benavides, City Clerk 

 

 

 I, ALMA BENAVIDES, City Clerk of the City of Brawley, California, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020-  was passed and 

adopted by the City Council of the City of Brawley, California, at a regular 

meeting held on the 4th day of February 2020, and that it was so adopted by 

the following roll call vote:   

 

 AYES:    

 NAYS:   

 ABSTAIN:  

 ABSENT:  

 

DATED:   February 4, 2020    __________________________ 

        Alma Benavides, City Clerk 

 

 

73



74



 
B

ID
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 F
O

R
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
: 

2
0

1
9

-0
7

 A
lle

n
 S

tr
e

e
t 

W
a

te
r 

P
ip

e
lin

e
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 P
ro

je
c
t 

  
B

ID
 O

P
E

N
 D

A
T

E
: 

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
8

, 
2

0
2

0
 @

 2
:0

0
 P

M
 

  

 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 

 

B
ID

 S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 

 

 
F

a
rm

e
r’
s
 L

a
n

d
 L

e
v
e

lin
g
, 

In
c
. 

D
b

a
 M

a
s
te

rs
 C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

1
6

1
0

 M
a

in
 S

tr
e

e
t 

B
ra

w
le

y
, 

C
A

  
9

2
2

2
7

 
 

   
 

  
  

$
6

9
4

,7
2

0
.0

0
 

 
 [x

] 
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
 

[x
] 
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
S

ig
n
a
tu

re
 P

a
g
e
 

[x
] 
 B

id
 S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 
[x

] 
 A

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

A
d
d
e
n
d
u
m

 #
1
 &

 #
2
 

[x
] 
 B

id
 B

o
n
d
 

[x
] 
 N

o
n
-C

o
llu

s
io

n
 A

ff
id

a
v
it
 

[x
] 
 P

u
b
lic

 C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
C

o
d
e
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 1

0
1
6
2
 Q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
  

[x
] 
 L

is
t 
o
f 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 S

u
b
-C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 

[x
] 
 M

a
jo

r 
M

a
te

ri
a
l 
S

u
p
p
lie

rs
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

[x
] 
 D

e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
E

lig
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(S

B
 8

5
4
) 

[x
] 
 D

e
b
a
rm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 S

u
s
p
e
n
s
io

n
 C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

[x
] 
 N

o
n
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 C

la
u
s
e
  
  
  
  
  
 

[x
] 
 E

q
u
a
l 
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
O

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 C

la
u
s
e
 

[x
] 
 E

q
u
a
l 
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

[x
] 
 D

ru
g
 F

re
e
 W

o
rk

p
la

c
e
 C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 
 

G
ra

n
it
e

 C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 C

o
. 

2
0

9
5

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
 1

1
1

 
E

l 
C

e
n

tr
o

, 
C

A
  

9
2

2
4

3
 

   
 

$
6

1
3

,3
1

6
.0

0
 

 
 [x

] 
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
 

[x
] 
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
S

ig
n
a
tu

re
 P

a
g
e
 

[x
] 
 B

id
 S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 
[x

] 
 A

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

A
d
d
e
n
d
u
m

 #
1
 &

 #
2
 

[x
] 
 B

id
 B

o
n
d
 

[x
] 
 N

o
n
-C

o
llu

s
io

n
 A

ff
id

a
v
it
 

[x
] 
 P

u
b
lic

 C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
C

o
d
e
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 1

0
1
6
2
 Q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
  

[x
] 
 L

is
t 
o
f 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 S

u
b
-C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 

[x
] 
 M

a
jo

r 
M

a
te

ri
a
l 
S

u
p
p
lie

rs
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

[x
] 
 D

e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
E

lig
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(S

B
 8

5
4
) 

[x
] 
 D

e
b
a
rm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 S

u
s
p
e
n
s
io

n
 C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

[x
] 
 N

o
n
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 C

la
u
s
e
  
  
  
  
  
 

[x
] 
 E

q
u
a
l 
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
O

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 C

la
u
s
e
 

[x
] 
 E

q
u
a
l 
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

[x
] 
 D

ru
g
 F

re
e
 W

o
rk

p
la

c
e
 C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 

75



 
P

y
ra

m
id

 C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 A
g
g
re

g
a

te
s
, 

In
c
. 

8
3

9
 D

o
g
w

o
o

d
 R

o
a

d
 

H
e

b
e

r,
 C

A
  

9
2

2
4

9
 

 

   
 

$
7

3
9

,1
0

1
.8

6
 

 
 [x

] 
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
 

[x
] 
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
S

ig
n
a
tu

re
 P

a
g
e
 

[x
] 
 B

id
 S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 
[x

] 
 A

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

A
d
d
e
n
d
u
m

 #
1
 &

 #
2
 

[x
] 
 B

id
 B

o
n
d
 

[x
] 
 N

o
n
-C

o
llu

s
io

n
 A

ff
id

a
v
it
 

[x
] 
 P

u
b
lic

 C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
C

o
d
e
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 1

0
1
6
2
 Q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
  

[x
] 
 L

is
t 
o
f 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 S

u
b
-C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 

[x
] 
 M

a
jo

r 
M

a
te

ri
a
l 
S

u
p
p
lie

rs
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

[x
] 
 D

e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
E

lig
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(S

B
 8

5
4
) 

[x
] 
 D

e
b
a
rm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 S

u
s
p
e
n
s
io

n
 C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

[x
] 
 N

o
n
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 C

la
u
s
e
  
  
  
  
  
 

[x
] 
 E

q
u
a
l 
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
O

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 C

la
u
s
e
 

[x
] 
 E

q
u
a
l 
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

[x
] 
 D

ru
g
 F

re
e
 W

o
rk

p
la

c
e
 C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 
 

76



C
it

y
 o

f 
B

r
a
w

le
y

M
id

-Y
e

ar
 2

0
1

9
-2

0
2

0
 B

u
d

ge
t 

R
ev

ie
w

Ju
ly

 t
o

 D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

9

77



P
u
r
p
o
s
e
 

B
u

d
ge

t 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
Si

gn
if

ic
an

t 
Fu

n
d

s
Sn

ap
sh

o
t 

o
f 

A
ct

u
al

 v
s.

 P
ro

je
ct

ed

78



A
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 2

0
1

9
-2

0
 B

u
d
g
e
t

B
eg

in
n

in
g 

B
al

an
ce

$
8

7
,3

7
1

,9
8

2

C
u

rr
en

t 
R

ev
en

u
e

s
$

4
4

,1
4

5
,9

6
6

C
u

rr
en

t 
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
 

$
5

3
,4

3
2

,6
1

6

En
d

in
g 

 B
al

an
ce

$
7

8
,0

8
5

,3
3

2

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 R
es

er
ve

 U
se

  2
0

1
9

-2
0

N
o

 O
p

er
at

io
n

al
 D

ef
ic

it
 b

u
d

ge
te

d
 d

u
e 

to
 u

se
 o

f 
H

W
Y 

R
el

in
q

u
is

h
m

e
n

t 
in

te
re

st
 o

f 
$

4
5

8
,4

2
4

.

79



F
Y
 2

0
1

9
-2

0

O
v
e
r
a
ll
 C

it
y
 B

u
d
g
e
t

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 B
u

d
ge

t

•
$

4
4

,1
4

5
,9

6
6

R
ev

en
u

e

•
$

5
3

,4
3

2
,6

1
6

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

-
To

ta
l

•
$

3
7

,5
8

9
,0

1
6

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

–
O

p
er

at
io

n
s

•
$

1
5

,8
4

3
,6

0
0

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

–
C

ap
it

al
 

P
ro

je
ct

s

A
ct

u
al

 t
h

ru
 1

2
/3

1
/2

0
1

9

•
$

1
8

,5
9

3
,7

1
0

   
  4

2
%

R
ev

en
u

e

•
$

2
0

,5
8

8
,3

4
5

   
3

9
%

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

-
To

ta
l

•
$

1
7

,8
4

2
,0

1
3

   
4

7
%

 
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

O
p

er
at

io
n

s

•
$

2
,7

4
6

,3
3

2
   

  1
7

%
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

C
ap

it
al

 
P

ro
je

ct
s

80



O
v
e
r
a
ll
 A

p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 B

u
d
g
e
t 

S
u
m

m
a
r
y

F
Y
 2

0
1

9
-2

0
 v

s
. 
F
Y
 2

0
1

8
-1

9

Bu
dg

et
ed

 
Ac

tu
al

 
%

Re
ve

nu
es

44
,1

45
,9

66
$  

  
18

,5
93

,7
10

$  
  

42
%

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

53
,4

32
,6

16
$  

  
20

,5
88

,3
45

$  
  

39
%

Bu
dg

et
ed

 
Ac

tu
al

 
%

Re
ve

nu
es

45
,0

14
,0

29
$  

  
13

,0
95

,8
92

$  
  

29
%

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

48
,5

51
,1

19
$  

  
14

,4
1 0

,0
05

$  
  

30
%

20
18

-1
9

20
19

-2
0

81



G
e
n
e
r
a
l 
F
u
n
d
 -

1
0

1

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 B
u

d
ge

t

•
$

1
5

,4
9

6
,6

6
5

R
ev

en
u

e

•
$

1
5

,4
9

6
,6

6
5

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

-
To

ta
l

•
$

1
5

,4
7

3
,4

5
3

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 
–

O
p

er
at

io
n

s

•
$

2
3

,2
1

2
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

C
ap

it
al

 
P

ro
je

ct
s

A
ct

u
al

 t
h

ru
 1

2
/3

1
/2

0
1

9

•
$

6
,0

9
4

,9
5

8
   

 3
9

%
R

ev
en

u
e

•
$

8
,4

2
5

,1
2

5
   

 5
4

%
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
-

To
ta

l

•
$

8
,4

0
1

,9
1

3
   

 5
4

%
Ex

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
s 

–
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s

•
$

0
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

C
ap

it
al

 
P

ro
je

ct
s

82



M
a
jo

r
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 S

o
u
r
c
e
s
  

G
e
n
e
r
a
l 
F
u
n
d
  

2
0

1
9

-2
0

Bu
dg

et
ed

 
Ac

tu
al 

%

Pr
op

er
ty 

Ta
xe

s
1,8

87
,03

5
$  

    
1,1

61
,42

8
$  

    
62

%

VL
F S

wa
p -

 Pr
op

er
ty 

Ta
x 

2,3
64

,00
0

$  
    

-
$  

     
     

     
  

0%

Sa
les

 &
 U

se
 Ta

xe
s

2,4
02

,20
4

$  
    

1,0
99

,59
7

$  
    

46
%

U t
ilit

y U
se

rs 
Ta

x
1,9

00
,00

0
$  

    
93

0,7
29

$  
     

   
49

%

20
19

-20

83



M
a
jo

r
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 S

o
u
r
c
e
s
  

G
e
n
e
r
a
l 
F
u
n
d
  

2
0

1
8

-1
9

Bu
dg

et
ed

 
Ac

tu
al 

%

Pr
op

er
ty 

Ta
xe

s
1,8

61
,87

7
$  

    
1,0

76
,40

7
$  

    
58

%

VL
F S

wa
p -

 Pr
op

er
ty 

Ta
x 

2,3
05

,71
4

$  
    

-
$  

     
     

     
  

0%

Sa
les

 &
 Us

e T
ax

es
2,1

80
,21

8
$  

    
68

4,5
45

$  
     

   
31

%

Ut
ilit

y U
se

rs 
Ta

x
1,7

86
,67

1
$  

    
93

6,4
05

$  
     

   
52

%

20
18

-19

84



M
a
jo

r
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 S

o
u
r
c
e
s
  

G
e
n
e
r
a
l 
F
u
n
d
 V

a
r
ia

n
c
e

P
ro

p
er

ty
 T

ax
es

•
7

%
 in

cr
ea

se
 o

ve
r 

p
ri

o
r 

FY
 a

ct
u

al
 t

o
 d

at
e.

•
Pa

ym
e

n
ts

 a
re

 a
llo

ca
te

d
 D

ec
em

b
e

r,
 A

p
ri

l &
 J

u
n

e

V
LF

 S
w

ap
 –

P
ro

p
er

ty
 T

ax
 S

B
1

0
9

6

•
R

ec
ei

ve
d

 $
1

,2
1

7
,0

7
8

 in
 J

an
u

ar
y,

 5
3

%
 o

f 
b

u
d

ge
te

d
 a

m
o

u
n

t.
 F

u
n

d
s 

ar
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 in
 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
&

 M
ay

 o
f 

e
ac

h
 F

Y.

Sa
le

s 
&

 U
se

 T
ax

es

•
In

cr
ea

se
 o

f 
3

8
%

 o
ve

r 
p

ri
o

r 
FY

 a
ct

u
al

 t
o

 d
at

e.

U
ti

lit
y 

U
se

rs
 T

ax

•
W

it
h

in
 1

%
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
FY

 a
ct

u
al

 t
o

 d
at

e.

85



M
id

 Y
e
a
r
 A

c
tu

a
ls

 C
o
m

p
a
r
is

o
n

20
19

-2
0

20
18

-1
9

In
cre

as
e

Pr
op

er
ty

 Ta
xe

s
1,1

61
,42

8
$  

    
1,0

76
,40

7
$  

    
85

,02
1

$  
    

 

VL
F S

wa
p -

 Pr
op

er
ty

 Ta
x 

-
$  

    
    

    
    

 
-

$  
    

    
    

    
 

-
$  

    
    

    

Sa
le

s &
 U

se
 Ta

xe
s

1,0
99

,59
7

$  
    

68
4,5

45
$  

    
    

41
5,0

52
$  

   

Ut
ili

ty
 U

se
rs 

Ta
x

93
0,7

29
$  

    
    

93
6,4

05
$  

    
    

(5
,67

7)
$  

    
  

M
id

 Ye
ar

 A
ctu

al

86



O
v
e
r
ti

m
e
 –

A
ll
 F

u
n
d
s

B
u

d
ge

te
d

 
A

ct
u

al
 

%

10
1 

- 
G

e
n

e
ra

l F
u

n
d

70
5,

46
7

$ 
   

   
   

43
9,

77
2

$ 
   

   
   

62
%

21
1 

- 
G

as
 T

ax
24

,0
42

$ 
   

   
   

  
9,

09
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

38
%

50
1 

- 
W

at
e

r
20

0,
63

9
$ 

   
   

   
82

,8
01

$ 
   

   
   

  
41

%

51
1-

 W
as

te
w

at
e

r
15

,8
77

$ 
   

   
   

  
3,

57
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

23
%

53
1 

- 
A

ir
p

o
rt

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0%

60
1 

- 
M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

1,
80

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
95

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

53
%

20
19

-2
0

Bu
dg

et
ed

 
A

ct
ua

l 
%

10
1 

- G
en

er
al

 F
un

d
36

0,
24

0
$ 

   
   

   
39

8,
49

1
$ 

   
   

   
11

1%

21
1 

- G
as

 T
ax

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
14

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
61

%

50
1 

- W
at

er
16

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
89

,2
38

$ 
   

   
   

  
54

%

51
1-

 W
as

te
w

at
er

40
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

4,
67

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
12

%

53
1 

- A
ir

po
rt

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0%

60
1 

- M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

41
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

47
%

20
18

-1
9

87



O
v
e
r
ti

m
e
 –

G
e
n
. 
F
u
n
d
 D

e
p
ts

.

B
u

d
g

e
te

d
 

A
ct

u
a

l 
%

1
1

2
 -

 C
it

y
 C

le
rk

3
3

4
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

1
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3
%

1
5

1
 -

 F
in

a
n

ce
8

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
3

4
9

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
4

4
%

1
5

2
 -

 U
ti

li
ty

 B
il

li
n

g
2

,4
2

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
1

,0
4

4
$

   
   

   
   

  
4

3
%

1
7

1
 -

 P
la

n
n

in
g

1
3

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1
3

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1
0

0
%

1
8

1
 -

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 T
e

ch
.

1
,3

8
9

$
   

   
   

   
   

9
7

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

7
0

%

2
1

1
- 

P
o

li
ce

   
   

   
   

 -
 S

w
o

rn
3

4
5

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
 

8
7

,7
5

5
$

   
   

   
   

2
5

%

   
   

   
   

 -
 N

o
n

-S
w

o
rn

5
1

,3
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

6
2

,4
2

2
$

   
   

   
   

1
2

2
%

2
1

1
.3

 -
 G

ra
ff

it
i 

A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2

7
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

2
2

1
 -

 F
ir

e
2

5
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
 

2
2

1
,6

6
0

$
   

   
   

 
8

9
%

2
3

1
 -

 B
u

il
d

in
g

 I
n

sp
e

ct
.

5
0

9
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0

%

2
4

1
 -

 A
n

im
a

l 
C

tl
4

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
3

4
7

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
9

%

3
1

1
 -

 E
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
9

,5
1

8
$

   
   

   
   

   
5

,8
4

6
$

   
   

   
   

  
6

1
%

5
1

1
 -

 P
a

rk
s

3
4

,7
2

4
$

   
   

   
   

1
0

,4
5

0
$

   
   

   
   

3
0

%

5
2

1
 -

 R
e

c 
&

 L
io

n
s 

C
tr

.
5

,3
7

9
$

   
   

   
   

   
1

,8
8

1
$

   
   

   
   

  
3

5
%

5
5

1
 -

 L
ib

ra
ry

7
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4
4

%

2
0

1
9

-2
0

In
cl

u
d

es
 S

an
 G

ab
ri

el
 e

st
im

at
e 

o
f 

$
2

2
0

K

88



O
v
e
r
ti

m
e
 –

G
e
n
. 
F
u
n
d
 D

e
p
ts

.

B
u

d
ge

te
d

 
A

ct
u

al
 

%

11
2 

- 
C

it
y 

C
le

rk
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
42

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
1 

- 
Fi

n
an

ce
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
44

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
2 

- 
U

ti
li

ty
 B

il
li

n
g

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
3,

88
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

19
4%

17
1 

- 
P

la
n

n
in

g
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

0%

18
1 

- 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 T

e
ch

.
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

82
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
82

%

21
1-

 P
o

li
ce

   
   

   
   

 -
 S

w
o

rn
12

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
58

,4
06

$ 
   

   
   

  
47

%

   
   

   
   

 -
 N

o
n

-S
w

o
rn

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

31
,3

31
$ 

   
   

   
  

63
%

21
1.

3 
- 

G
ra

ff
it

i A
b

at
e

m
e

n
t

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

22
1 

- 
Fi

re
13

5,
04

0
$ 

   
   

   
23

9,
30

1
$ 

   
   

   
17

7%

23
1 

- 
B

u
il

d
in

g 
In

sp
e

ct
.

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0%

24
1 

- 
A

n
im

al
 C

tl
7,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

3,
64

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
49

%

31
1 

- 
En

gi
n

e
e

ri
n

g
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

5,
12

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
12

8%

51
1 

- 
P

ar
ks

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

18
,2

26
$ 

   
   

   
  

61
%

52
1 

- 
R

e
c 

&
 L

io
n

s 
C

tr
.

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
22

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

4%

55
1 

- 
Li

b
ra

ry
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   

20
18

-2
01

9

89



S
tr

e
e
ts

 -
G

a
s
 T

a
x
 -

2
1

1

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 B
u

d
ge

t

•
$

1
,1

8
8

,6
0

5
R

ev
en

u
e

•
$

2
,2

1
8

,1
7

1
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
-

To
ta

l

•
$

1
,0

4
3

,2
1

6
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

O
p

er
at

io
n

s

•
$

1
,1

7
4

,9
5

5
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

C
ap

it
al

 
P

ro
je

ct
s

A
ct

u
al

 t
h

ru
 1

2
/3

1
/2

0
1

9

•
$

5
6

1
,1

8
4

   
   

 4
7

%
R

ev
en

u
e

•
$

5
5

8
,8

5
1

   
   

 2
7

%
 

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

-
To

ta
l

•
$

3
1

2
,5

9
9

   
   

 3
0

%
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

O
p

er
at

io
n

s

•
$

2
4

6
,2

5
2

   
   

 2
1

%
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

C
ap

it
al

 
P

ro
je

ct
s

90



S
tr

e
e
ts

 –
M

e
a
s
u
r
e
 D

 -
2

1
5

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 B
u

d
ge

t •
$

1
,1

2
5

,0
0

0
R

ev
en

u
e

•
$

1
,4

6
8

,3
2

3
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
-

To
ta

l

•
$

9
2

8
,3

5
8

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

–
O

p
er

at
io

n
s

•
$

5
3

9
,9

6
5

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

–
C

ap
it

al
 

P
ro

je
ct

s

A
ct

u
al

 t
h

ru
 1

2
/3

1
/2

0
1

9

•
$

2
4

9
,5

6
4

   
   

2
2

%
R

ev
en

u
e

•
$

2
2

9
,2

3
6

   
   

1
6

%
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
-

To
ta

l

•
$

2
2

9
,2

3
6

   
   

2
5

%
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

O
p

er
at

io
n

s

•
$

0
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

C
ap

it
al

 
P

ro
je

ct
s

91



W
a
te

r
 F

u
n
d
 -

5
0

1

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 B
u

d
ge

t

•
$

7
,0

7
2

,4
5

0
R

ev
en

u
e

•
$

1
0

,4
1

0
,4

9
8

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

-
To

ta
l

•
$

6
,6

7
1

,6
6

0
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

O
p

er
at

io
n

s

•
$

3
,7

3
8

,8
3

8
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

C
ap

it
al

 
P

ro
je

ct
s

A
ct

u
al

 t
h

ru
 1

2
/3

1
/2

0
1

9

•
$

3
,9

6
4

,4
4

6
   

 5
6

%
R

ev
en

u
e

•
$

2
,5

1
8

,6
9

6
   

 2
6

%
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
-

To
ta

l

•
$

2
,3

9
7

,5
2

   
   

3
6

%
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

O
p

er
at

io
n

s

•
$

1
2

1
,1

6
7

   
   

   
 3

%
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

C
ap

it
al

 
P

ro
je

ct
s

92



W
a
s
te

w
a
te

r
 F

u
n
d
 -

5
1

1

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 B
u

d
ge

t

•
$

5
,6

2
3

,6
0

0
R

ev
en

u
e

•
$

6
,5

2
3

,2
3

4
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
-

To
ta

l

•
$

4
,9

0
2

,5
6

7
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

O
p

er
at

io
n

s

•
$

1
,6

2
0

,6
6

7
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

C
ap

it
al

 
P

ro
je

ct
s

A
ct

u
al

 t
h

ru
 1

2
/3

1
/2

0
1

9

•
$

3
,1

0
2

,5
6

1
   

5
5

%
R

ev
en

u
e

•
$

1
,5

3
8

,5
3

8
   

2
6

%
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
-

To
ta

l

•
$

2
,3

9
7

,5
2

   
  3

6
%

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

–
O

p
er

at
io

n
s

•
$

4
0

,8
5

1
   

   
   

  3
%

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

–
C

ap
it

al
 

P
ro

je
ct

s

93



W
a
te

r
 &

 W
a
s
te

w
a
te

r
 F

u
n
d

A
d
d
it

io
n
a
l 
In

fo
r
m

a
ti

o
n
 

W
at

er
 F

u
n

d
 L

o
an

 f
ro

m
 W

as
te

w
at

er
 F

u
n

d
 -

$
1

.0
1

4
 m

ill
io

n

•
1

1
 a

n
n

u
al

 p
ay

m
e

n
ts

 r
em

ai
n

in
g 

in
cl

u
d

in
g 

FY
2

0
1

9
-2

0
 

p
ay

m
e

n
t

•
A

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
$

1
0

2
,3

0
7

.6
8

 (
in

cl
u

d
es

 p
ri

n
ci

p
al

 a
n

d
 In

te
re

st
)

R
es

id
en

ti
al

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
er

ci
al

 U
ti

lit
y 

R
at

es
 

•
N

o
 In

cr
ea

se
s 

sc
h

ed
u

le
d

. W
at

er
 &

 S
ew

er
 R

at
e 

St
u

d
y 

n
ee

d
ed

. S
tu

d
y 

is
 b

u
d

ge
te

d
 f

o
r 

th
is

 f
is

ca
l y

ea
r.

94



S
o
li
d
 W

a
s
te

 F
u
n
d
 -

5
2

1

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 B
u

d
ge

t

•
$

1
,4

8
8

,0
6

7
R

ev
en

u
e

•
$

1
,2

5
0

,0
8

9
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
-

To
ta

l

•
$

1
,2

5
0

,0
8

9
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

O
p

er
at

io
n

s

•
N

o
n

e
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

C
ap

it
al

 
P

ro
je

ct
s

A
ct

u
al

 t
h

ru
 1

2
/3

1
/2

0
1

9

•
$

7
3

6
,5

0
0

   
  5

0
%

R
ev

en
u

e

•
$

6
4

2
,4

9
5

   
  5

1
%

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

-
To

ta
l

•
$

6
4

2
,4

9
5

   
  5

1
%

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

–
O

p
er

at
io

n
s

•
N

o
n

e
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

C
ap

it
al

 
P

ro
je

ct
s

95



A
ir

p
o
r
t 

F
u
n
d
 -

5
3

1

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 B
u

d
ge

t

•
$

1
2

1
,7

8
2

R
ev

en
u

e

•
$

1
9

5
,0

0
1

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

-
To

ta
l

•
$

8
8

,7
5

1
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

O
p

er
at

io
n

s

•
$

1
0

6
,2

5
0

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

–
C

ap
it

al
 

P
ro

je
ct

s

A
ct

u
al

 t
h

ru
 1

2
/3

1
/2

0
1

9

•
$

6
0

,6
2

6
   

   
5

0
%

R
ev

en
u

e

•
$

2
2

,7
7

6
   

   
1

2
%

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

-
To

ta
l

•
$

2
2

,7
7

6
   

   
2

6
%

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

–
O

p
er

at
io

n
s

•
$

0
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
–

C
ap

it
al

 
P

ro
je

ct
s

96



P
r
e
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 M

e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 

fo
r
 B

u
d
g
e
t 

O
v
e
r
r
u
n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
b

et
w

ee
n

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 &
 

Fi
n

an
ce

 D
ir

ec
to

r

•
Ex

am
in

at
io

n
 o

f 
al

l v
ar

ia
n

ce
s

•
P

re
p

ar
e 

B
u

d
ge

t 
A

d
ju

st
m

en
ts

 t
o

 a
d

ju
st

 
fo

r 
ac

co
u

n
t 

o
ve

ra
ge

s

•
B

u
d

ge
t 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t 

n
o

t 
to

 e
xc

ee
d

 
o

ve
ra

ll 
b

u
d

ge
t 

w
it

h
o

u
t 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

ap
p

ro
va

l

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e 
to

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
ll 

co
n

tr
ac

ts
 

&
 c

o
n

so
lid

at
e 

th
ro

u
gh

 F
in

an
ce

.

97



O
u
tl
o
o
k
…

…
.

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 P
re

ss
u

re
s 
–

•
O

ve
rt

im
e 

p
ay

o
u

ts
 a

n
d

 le
ga

l e
xp

e
n

se
s 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 S
an

 G
ab

ri
e

l 
C

o
u

rt
 D

ec
is

io
n

Fi
re

 C
o

st
s 

R
ec

o
ve

ry
 f

u
lly

 im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 –
Ja

n
. 2

0
2

0

EF
M

 M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 &

 F
u

el
 P

ro
gr

am
 f

u
lly

 im
p

le
m

en
te

d
 –

Ja
n

. 2
0

2
0

P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

ye
ar

-e
n

d
 c

lo
se

 2
0

1
8

-2
0

1
9

•
$

2
2

9
,7

9
6

 E
st

im
at

ed
 G

en
er

al
 F

u
n

d
 R

es
er

ve
 U

se
 p

en
d

in
g 

au
d

it
 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

•
W

at
er

 f
u

n
d

 –
O

p
er

at
in

g 
ga

in

•
W

as
te

w
at

er
 f

u
n

d
 –

O
p

er
at

in
g 

ga
in

98



Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
…
…
..

99



100



 
   

PARTNERS COMMERCIAL ACCOUNTING & TAX SERVICES GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT SERVICES 
RONALD A LEVY, CPA 433 N. CAMDEN DR. SUITE 730 5800 HANNUM, SUITE E
CRAIG A HARTZHEIM, CPA BEVERLY HILLS, CA 90210 CULVER CITY, CA  90230
HADLEY Y HUI, CPA TEL:  310.273.2745 TEL:  310.670.2745  

    ADAM GUISE, CPA FAX: 310.670.1689 FAX:  310.670.1689  
    TRAVIS HOLE, CPA www.mlhcpas.com www.mlhcpas.com

   ALEXANDER HOM, CPA 

OFFICES: BEVERLY HILLS ∙ CULVER CITY ∙ SANTA MARIA 
 

MEMBER AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF C.P.A.’S ∙ CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS ∙ CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIALS 

 

 

January 21, 2020 

 
To the City Council 
City of Brawley 
383 W. Main Street 
Brawley, CA 92227 
   

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide the City of Brawley for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2019. We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information, including the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the basic financial statements, of the City of Brawley as of and for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2019. Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide for certain required 
supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement the City of 
Brawley’s basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our 
engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the City of Brawley’s RSI in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management 
regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSI 
is required by generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be 
audited:  

1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis. 

2) General and major Special Revenue Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedules 

3) Pension Related Information in Accordance with GASB Statement Nos. 68 and 71. 

4) OPEB Related Information in Accordance with GASB Statement Nos. 75 

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies the City of 
Brawley’s financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing procedures applied 
in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, and we will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a 
whole, in a report combined with our auditor’s report on the financial statements.  

1) Schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 

2) Non-Major Funds Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules 

3) Internal Service Funds Combining Statements and Schedules 

101



 

 

The following other information accompanying the financial statements will not be subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in our audit of the financial statements, and our auditor’s report will not provide an opinion or any assurance on 
that other information.  

1) Preparation and filing of CA SCO transaction reports for Cities. 

Audit Objectives 

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all 
material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles  and to report on the fairness of the 
supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the financial statements as 
a whole. The objective also includes reporting on— 

 Internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and award 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards. 

 Internal control over compliance related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on 
compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards that could have a 
direct and material effect on each major program in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 
and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 

The Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other 
matters will include a paragraph that states that (1) the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of 
internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance, and (2) the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. The Uniform Guidance report 
on internal control over compliance will include a paragraph that states that the purpose of the report on internal control 
over compliance is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing 
based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Both reports will state that the report is not suitable for any other 
purpose.  

Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996; and the provisions of the Uniform Guidance, and will include 
tests of accounting records, a determination of major program(s) in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, and other 
procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. We will issue written reports upon completion 
of our Single Audit. Our reports will be addressed to the City Council and Management of the City of Brawley. We cannot 
provide assurance that unmodified opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to 
modify our opinions or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we 
will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form 
or have not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or we may withdraw from this 
engagement.  

Audit Procedures—General  

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the areas to 
be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or 
(4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the government or to acts by management or 
employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the determination of abuse is subjective, Government Auditing 
Standards do not expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and because we 
will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements or noncompliance 
may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with U.S. 
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect 

102



 

 

immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on 
the financial statements or major programs. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material 
errors, any fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that come to our attention.  We will also inform the 
appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless 
clearly inconsequential, and of any material abuse that comes to our attention. We will include such matters in the reports 
required for a Single Audit. Our responsibility as auditors, is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend 
to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors. 

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, and may 
include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain other assets and 
liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions.  We will 
request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for responding to 
this inquiry.  At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you about your 
responsibilities for the financial statements; schedule of expenditures of federal awards; federal award programs; 
compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other responsibilities required by generally 
accepted auditing standards. 

Audit Procedures—Internal Control  

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control, 
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing, and 
extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we 
consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to 
preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render 
an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued 
pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

As required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate the effectiveness of 
the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with 
compliance requirements applicable to each major federal award program. However, our tests will be less in scope than 
would be necessary to render an opinion on those controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on 
internal control issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. 

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance 
internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards, Government 
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance.  

Audit Procedures—Compliance  

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, we 
will perform tests of the City of Brawley’s compliance with provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and 
agreements, including grant agreements. However, the objective of those procedures will not be to provide an opinion on 
overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government 
Auditing Standards. 
 
The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the auditee has complied with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards applicable to 
major programs. Our procedures will consist of tests of transactions and other applicable procedures described in the 
OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of the City of Brawley’s major programs. The purpose of these procedures will be to express an opinion on the City 
of Brawley’s compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major programs in our report on compliance issued 
pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. 

103



 

 

Other Services  

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes of 
the City of Brawley in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and the Uniform Guidance based on 
information provided by you. These non-audit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards 
and such services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. We will perform the services 
in accordance with applicable professional standards. The other services are limited to the financial statements, schedule 
of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes services previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, 
reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed as assuming management 
responsibilities. 

Management Responsibilities 

Management is responsible for (1) establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including internal controls over 
federal awards, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives 
are met; (2) following laws and regulations; (3) ensuring that there is reasonable assurance that government programs are 
administered in compliance with compliance requirements; and (4) ensuring that management and financial information is 
reliable and properly reported. Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve 
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection 
and application of accounting principles; for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards, and all accompanying information in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles;  and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations (including federal statutes) and the provisions of 
contracts and grant agreements (including award agreements). Your responsibilities also include identifying significant 
contractor relationships in which the contractor has responsibility for program compliance and for the accuracy and 
completeness of that information. 

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for the 
accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information 
of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, (2) access to 
personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting documentation, and other information as needed to perform an audit 
under the Uniform Guidance, (3) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit, and (4) 
unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence.  

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us in 
the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the 
current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to 
the financial statements as a whole. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for 
informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2) employees who 
have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud 
affecting the government received in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. 
In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with applicable laws, 
regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. Management is also responsible for taking timely and appropriate steps to 
remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, or abuse that we 
report. Additionally, as required by the Uniform Guidance, it is management’s responsibility to evaluate and monitor 
noncompliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards; take prompt action 
when instances of noncompliance are identified including noncompliance identified in audit findings; promptly follow up 
and take corrective action on reported audit findings; and prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a 
separate corrective action plan.  

You are responsible for identifying all federal awards received and understanding and complying with the compliance 
requirements and for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (including notes and noncash 
assistance received) in conformity with the Uniform Guidance. You agree to include our report on the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards in any document that contains and indicates that we have reported on the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards. You also agree to make the audited financial statements readily available to intended 
users of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards no later than the date the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards is issued with our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation 
letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in accordance with 
the Uniform Guidance; (2) you believe the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, including its form and content, is 

104



 

 

stated fairly in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed 
from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed 
to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards. 

You are also responsible for the preparation of the other supplementary information, which we have been engaged to 
report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  You agree to include our report on the 
supplementary information in any document that contains, and indicates that we have reported on, the supplementary 
information. You also agree to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary 
information that includes our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written 
representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with 
GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance 
with GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if 
they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or 
interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.  

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous financial audits, 
attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives 
section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and 
recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or studies. You are also 
responsible for providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as 
your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that information.  

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards, and related notes, and any other non-audit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in 
the management representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements, schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards, and related notes and that you have reviewed and approved the financial statements, 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for 
them. Further, you agree to oversee the non-audit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior 
management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; and 
accept responsibility for them.  

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other  

We may from time to time, and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in serving your account. 
We may share confidential information about you with these service providers, but remain committed to maintaining the 
confidentiality and security of your information. Accordingly, we maintain internal policies, procedures, and safeguards to 
protect the confidentiality of your personal information. In addition, we will secure confidentiality agreements with all 
service providers to maintain the confidentiality of your information and we will take reasonable precautions to determine 
that they have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized release of your confidential information to 
others. In the event that we are unable to secure an appropriate confidentiality agreement, you will be asked to provide 
your consent prior to the sharing of your confidential information with the third-party service provider. Furthermore, we will 
remain responsible for the work provided by any such third-party service providers.  

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we request and will 
locate any documents selected by us for testing.  

At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of the Data Collection Form that 
summarizes our audit findings. It is management’s responsibility to electronically submit the reporting package (including 
financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings, auditors’ 
reports, and corrective action plan) along with the Data Collection Form to the federal audit clearinghouse. We will 
coordinate with you the electronic submission and certification. The Data Collection Form and the reporting package must 
be submitted within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditors’ reports or nine months after the end of the 
audit period. 

We will provide copies of our reports to the City; however, management is responsible for distribution of the reports and 
the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and confidential information, 
copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection. 

105



 

 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP and constitutes confidential 
information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate individuals will be 
made available upon request and in a timely manner to any oversight agency or its designee, a federal agency providing 
direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to 
resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, 
access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP personnel. 
Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These 
parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other 
governmental agencies.  

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of seven years after the report release date 
or for any additional period requested by any oversight agency. If we are aware that a federal awarding agency, pass-
through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit finding for 
guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 

We expect to begin our audit on approximately January 29, 2020 and to issue our reports no later than March 31, 2020. 
Craig A Hartzheim is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the reports 
or authorizing another individual to sign them.  

Our fee for these services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs (such as report reproduction, word 
processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that we agree that our gross fee, including expenses, will not 
exceed $54,500. This fee includes auditing 1 major program under the Single Audit Act, additional major programs 
required to be audited will be charged $3,000 each. Our standard hourly rates vary according to the degree of 
responsibility involved and the experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit. Our invoices for these fees will be 
rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm policies, work 
may be suspended if your account becomes 45 days or more overdue and may not be resumed until your account is paid 
in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed 
upon written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report(s). You will be obligated to compensate 
us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination.  The above fee is 
based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be 
encountered during the audit.  If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee 
estimate before we incur the additional costs. 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the City of Brawley and believe this letter accurately summarizes the 
significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of our 
engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us.  
 

 

Very truly yours, 
 

 
 

Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP 

RESPONSE: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the City of Brawley: 

.  

Management signature:  
  
Title:  
  
Date:  

 

106



107



108



RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 
 

  RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BRAWLEY,  
CALIFORNIA, ACCEPTING GRANT FUNDS ALLOCATED TO THE CITIZEN’S 
OPTION FOR PUBLIC SAFETY (COPS) PROGRAM AND SUBMITTAL  
OF THE EXPENDITURE PLAN FOR FY 2018-2019 FUNDING THROUGH  
THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA LOCAL SAFETY AND PROTECTION ACCOUNT  

  
WHEREAS, the State of California Transportation Fund’s Local Safety and 

Protection Account (“the LPSA”) has made funds available to law enforcement 
units of local government for the purpose of the Citizen’s Option for Public 
Safety (“COPS”) Program; and   
  
 WHEREAS, the LSPA has tentatively awarded one hundred sixty-three 
thousand three hundred thirty-five dollars and seventy nine cents 
($163,335.79) to the City of Brawley’s Police Department (“the City”)for 
operational funding exclusively for the COPS Program; and  
  
 WHEREAS, the State Controller is required to allocate the COPS front-
line enforcement funds to each county that has established a Supplemental Law 
Enforcement Services Fund (“SLESF”) and an oversight committee pursuant to 
Government Code §30064; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with LSPA program guidelines for the grant, it 
is the responsibility of the County of Imperial (“the County”), as the host 
agency, to disburse funding from their SLESF in one (1) installment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with legislative requirements, the City must 
submit an itemized expenditure plan for the use of the funding allocation to 
the County for the review of an approval by the oversight committee, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Brawley, California desires to 
accept the funds from the LSPA for the COPS Program. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BRAWLEY, CALIFORNIA, 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. That the foregoing is true, correct and adopted. 
 
2. That the City hereby accepts the grant funds of one hundred 

sixty-three thousand three hundred thirty-five dollars and 
seventy nine cents ($163,335.79), in one (1) installment, 
from the LSPA for the COPS Program. 
 

3. That the Brawley Police Department’s itemized expenditure 
 plan is as follows: 
 
$163,335.79 Police and Communication equipment and services 
 

 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Brawley City 
Council held on February 4, 2020. 
 
        CITY OF BRAWLEY, CALIFORNIA 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        Norma Kastner-Jauregui, Mayor 

109



 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Alma Benavides, City Clerk 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF IMPERIAL 
CITY OF BRAWLEY 
 
 I, ALMA BENAVIDES, City Clerk of the City of Brawley, California, DO 
HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020- was passed and adopted 
by the City Council of the City of Brawley, California, at a regular meeting 
held on the 4th of February 2020 and that it was so adopted by the following 
roll call vote:   

 AYES:     
 NAYES:  
 ABSTAIN:  
 ABSENT:  
 
DATED:  February 4, 2020    _______________________ 
        Alma Benavides, City Clerk 

  

 

 

 

 
 

 

110



From: Patricia Lizarraga
To: Norma Jauregui (norma.jauregui@att.net)
Cc: Tony Godinez; Robert Sawyer; Rosanna B. Moore
Subject: SLEF COPS
Date: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 4:33:48 PM

[EXTERNAL EMAIL] This email originated from outside of the organization. Please be mindful when
opening attachments and embedded links.

Good Afternoon Norma
 
Our records indicate that as of January 22, 2010  SLEF Cops funds for the City of Brawley  totaled 
$222,009.09.
 
FY 2018-19  $100,000
FY 2018-19    $63,335.79  (Growth)
FY 2019-20    $58,673.30
 
Funds for fiscal year 18-19 should be liquidated by 12/31/2020. 
 
Should you require further information, please advise
 
Best regards
 
 

 
Patricia Lizarraga, MBA
Accountant-Auditor
Auditor-Controller
940  W Main Street Suite 108
El Centro, CA  92243
Phone-442-265-1280
e-mail patricializarraga@co.imperial.ca.us
 

111

mailto:PatriciaLizarraga@co.imperial.ca.us
mailto:norma.jauregui@att.net
mailto:TGodinez@brawley-ca.gov
mailto:RSawyer@brawley-ca.gov
mailto:RMoore@brawley-ca.gov
mailto:patricializarraga@co.imperial.ca


112



RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 
 

  RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BRAWLEY, CALIFORNIA AUTHORIZING 
  THE CITY TO APPLY FOR AN AWARD FROM THE INFILL INFRASTRUCTURE  
  PROGRAM. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Brawley (“Recipient”) is authorized to do business 
in the State of California; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Recipient wishes to apply for and receive an allocation of 
funds through the Infill Infrastructure Grant Program (“IIG”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, The State of California Department of Housing and Community 
Development (the “Department”) has issued a Notice of Funding Availability 
(“NOFA”) for IIG established under Assembly Bill 101 (Chapter 159, Statutes of 
2019) and Part 12.5 (commencing with section 53559) of Division 31 of the 
Health and Safety Code, which authorizes the Department to approve funding 
allocations utilizing monies made available by the State Legislature, subject 
to the terms and conditions of the statute and the IIG Guidelines implemented 
October 30, 2019.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED: That the Recipient pursuant to the 
above-described Notice of Funding Availability wishes to apply for and receive 
an allocation of funds in an amount not to exceed $7,500,000(the "IIG Grant"). 
 
 RESOLVED FURTHER: That in connection with the Recipient's IIG  Grant, 
the  Recipient is authorized and directed to enter into, execute, and deliver 
a State of California Standard Agreement, and any and all other documents 
required or deemed necessary or appropriate to carry into effect the full 
intent and purpose of the above resolution, in order to evidence the IIG 
Grant, the Recipient's obligations related thereto, and the Department's 
security therefore; including, but not limited to, an affordable housing 
covenant, a performance deed of trust, a disbursement agreement, and certain 
other documents required by the Department as security for, evidence of or 
pertaining to the IIG Grant, and all amendments thereto (collectively, the 
"IIG Grant Documents"). 
 
 RESOLVED FURTHER: That Rosanna Bayon Moore, City Manager of the City of 
Brawley is hereby authorized to execute the IIG Grant Documents, and any 
amendment or modifications thereto, on behalf of the Recipient. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER: That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
passage. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Brawley City 
Council held on February 4, 2020. 
 
        CITY OF BRAWLEY, CALIFORNIA 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        Norma Kastner Jauregui, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Alma Benavides, City Clerk 
 
 

113



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF IMPERIAL 
CITY OF BRAWLEY 
 
 I, ALMA BENAVIDES, City Clerk of the City of Brawley, California, DO 
HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020- was passed and adopted 
by the City Council of the City of Brawley, California, at a regular meeting 
held on the 4th of February 2020 and that it was so adopted by the following 
roll call vote:  m/s/c   
 
 AYES:     
 NAYES:  
 ABSTAIN:  
 ABSENT:  
 
DATED:  February 4, 2020    ______________________ 
        Alma Benavides, City Clerk 
  
 
 
 
 
 

114



115



116



117



118



119



[DATE] 

 

Mr. Kevyn Piper 

California Energy Commission 

1516 Ninth Street, MS-18 

Sacramento, California 95814 

 

RE: Support Letter for Salton Sea Geothermal Lithium Recovery Demonstration Project  

 

Dear Mr. Piper, 

 

The intent of this letter is to express the City of Brawley’s support for the demonstration project 

proposed by BHE Renewables Minerals, LLC—a wholly owned subsidiary of Berkshire 

Hathaway Energy.  BHE Renewables, the parent company of BHE Renewables Minerals, is an 

independent power producer with approximately 4,000 megawatts of generation capacity, 

including 350 megawatts at 10 geothermal power plants in California’s Imperial Valley.   

 

The proposal is to design, build, and operate an integrated, pre-commercial geothermal brine pre-

treatment and lithium recovery system at an existing geothermal power plant in Calipatria, 

California, an area adjacent to the Salton Sea.  As a region in the State of California vigorously 

seeking to improve socio economic opportunities for residents, the project represents significant 

economic development potential for a severely disadvantaged pocket of the State. 

 

The use of lithium carbonate continues to grow, from electric vehicle (EV) batteries to a broad 

range of battery-powered devices prevalent around the world today.  The proposed one-tenth 

commercial-scale demonstration facility aims to process 100 gallons per minute (g/m) of 

geothermal brine and recover lithium chloride for conversion into one of the world's most 

valuable commodities.   

 

The efficient recovery of lithium from brine resources represents a major technological and 

financial challenge and, at the same time, a tremendous opportunity for California. If successful, 

the system wholeheartedly asserts it will represent the world’s most environmentally friendly 

lithium recovery plant. Once the demonstration project is taken to scale, the Imperial Valley 

region could become the foremost lithium production center across the globe.  

 

The demonstration project will open new doors for not only BHE Renewables Minerals but also 

Imperial Valley and the City of Brawley.  Of critical note, the proposed demonstration project 

could accelerate private investment in lithium recovery from geothermal brine—investment that 

has been lacking to date because the technology has not yet been proven on a commercial scale. 

When fully commercialized, the project is committed to multiple direct benefits, including local 

hiring for residents with the creation of approximately 400 high-paying jobs, generous benefits 

packages, extensive workforce training, $1.8 billion in construction activity, and the annual 

generation of approximately $20 million in taxes due to Imperial County.  

 

120



For these reasons, the City of Brawley strongly supports the proposed demonstration project and 

urges you to award it funding in this year’s grant funding round. If you have any questions, , 

please contact [NAME] at [PHONE] or [EMAIL]. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

[NAME] 

[TITLE] 

[ADDRESS] 

[EMAIL] 

[PHONE] 

 

 

121



Monthly Staffing Report for February 1, 2020 Updated: 1/28/2020

Notes

Building & Community Develop. 4.5 4.5 0 Retirement of Building Inspector in Dec 

Finance 8 7 1 Management Analyst starts 2/10/2020

Fire 17 17 0
Personnel & Risk Management 1 1 0  
Information Technology 1 1 0
Library 3 3 0  
Parks & Recreation 9 9 0 Interim Director
Planning 2 2 0
Police 40 38 2  (1) Dispatcher and (1) CSO .  Four police 

officer candidates,  six dispatcher 
candidates and one CSO candidate in 
backgrounds.   Police Officer candidates are 
to create an eligibility list 

Public Works 36.5 34.5 2 Utility Leadman , WWTP Maintenance Wkr
Records Management/City Clerk 3 3 0  Clerk as 2 positions
Council Members 5 5 0  
Treasurer 1 1 0
City Manager 1 1 0
Total 132 127 5

Groups Limited Term 
Positions

Temp & Part 
time Positions 

Temp Agency 
Positions 

Fire - Reserve/Call Paid 0 11 0 Call Paid Firefighters recruitment in 
progress

Finance 0

Library 3 4 0

Parks & Recreation 0 14 0 Two temps for parks maintenance; one temp 
covering for a person on medical leave, one 
admin sec and sr ctr coord.   One person to turn 
on and off lights; field supervisor for rec 
leagues.  8 lifeguards.  

Police 0 2 0  P/T Maintenance worker,  F/T Graffiti 
Abatement

Public Works 0 1 0 Temp workers in pretreatment
Records Management 0 1 0 Temp worker from PD 10  hours per week
Prepared by:

The above are the current FY approved budgeted positions

Filled 
Positions 

Shirley Bonillas, Personnel & Risk Management Administrator

Planning/CDS

Vacant Positions

0

Fiscal Year 2019 - 2020

Full-time Regular EE Groups Authorized 
Positions

0 0

122



Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y:

  O
sc

ar
 E

sc
al

an
te

, I
nt

er
im

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
O

ffi
ci

al
De

ce
m

be
r 2

01
9

1/
23

/2
02

0

DA
TE

 
PE

RM
IT

 
PE

RM
IT

AS
SE

SS
O

R 
PA

RC
EL

 
IS

SU
ED

N
U

M
BE

R
DE

SC
RI

PT
IO

N
N

U
M

BE
R

12
/0

2/
19

28
49

7
El

ec
tr

ic
al

04
9-

16
1-

02
4

10
80

 "J
" S

tr
ee

t
An

to
ni

o 
an

d 
Is

ab
el

 D
ua

rt
e

Re
d 

O
ne

 E
le

ct
ric

, I
nc

.
N

/A

12
/0

2/
19

28
49

8
El

ec
tr

ic
al

04
8-

13
2-

00
5

36
0 

W
es

t "
K"

 S
tr

ee
t

M
ic

ha
el

 R
ee

ve
s

St
ill

s E
le

ct
ric

N
/A

12
/0

2/
19

28
49

9
Ri

gh
t o

f W
ay

N
/A

15
28

 "B
" S

tr
ee

t
Ci

ty
 o

f B
ra

w
le

y 
So

 C
al

 G
as

N
/A

12
/0

2/
19

28
50

0
Ri

gh
t o

f W
ay

04
8-

14
1-

00
1

17
2 

W
es

t "
I"

 S
tr

ee
t

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ra
w

le
y 

So
 C

al
 G

as
N

/A

12
/0

2/
19

28
50

1
Ri

gh
t o

f W
ay

N
/A

15
34

 "B
" S

tr
ee

t
Ci

ty
 o

f B
ra

w
le

y 
So

 C
al

 G
as

N
/A

12
/0

3/
19

28
50

2
Re

pl
ac

e 
An

te
nn

as
04

8-
32

0-
01

8
42

23
 H

ig
hw

ay
 8

6
Am

er
ic

an
 T

ow
er

W
av

 C
om

m
, I

nc
.

$1
5,

00
0.

00

12
/0

3/
19

28
50

3
Ho

us
e 

Re
pa

ir
04

9-
16

1-
00

5
10

05
 "K

" S
tr

ee
t

M
ar

ia
 A

. N
av

ar
ro

N
S 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n,

 In
c.

$1
4,

00
0.

00

12
/0

4/
19

28
50

4
As

be
st

os
 A

ba
te

m
en

t
04

9-
16

1-
02

5
10

05
 "K

" S
tr

ee
t

M
ar

ia
 A

. N
av

ar
ro

Al
lia

nc
e 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l G
ro

up
, I

nc
.

$6
,0

00
.0

0

12
/0

4/
19

28
50

5
Ho

us
e 

Re
m

od
el

04
8-

27
3-

00
5

77
0 

Ga
rr

et
t S

tr
ee

t
M

ar
k 

Be
rn

se
n

Da
n 

Bo
ye

r C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
$1

1,
00

0.
00

12
/0

4/
19

28
50

6
Ho

us
e 

Re
m

od
el

04
8-

04
1-

01
2

15
8 

 S
ou

th
 R

io
 V

ist
a

Pa
tr

ic
ia

 G
ut

hr
ie

Da
n 

Bo
ye

r C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
$8

,5
00

.0
0

12
/0

4/
19

28
50

7
Ho

us
e 

Re
m

od
el

04
7-

32
0-

03
0

33
4 

W
ils

on
 S

tr
ee

t
Ro

nn
ie

 a
nd

 G
le

nd
a 

Se
ve

rt
O

w
ne

r
$2

0,
00

0.
00

12
/0

4/
19

28
50

8
Ho

us
e 

Re
m

od
el

04
9-

18
1-

01
9

69
8 

So
ut

h 
Im

pe
ria

l A
ve

nu
e

Je
su

s A
nt

on
io

 R
ey

no
sa

An
dr

ad
e 

Ac
qu

isi
tio

ns
 a

nd
 B

ui
ld

in
g

$3
0,

00
0.

00

12
/0

5/
19

28
50

9
El

ec
tr

ic
al

04
7-

16
1-

01
8

13
85

 A
dl

er
 S

tr
ee

t
M

ar
y 

Co
rn

ej
o

O
w

ne
r

N
/A

12
/0

6/
19

28
51

0
Pl

um
bi

ng
04

8-
39

1-
01

1
13

71
 L

a 
Va

le
nc

ia
 D

riv
e

M
ar

k 
Gr

ee
nw

oo
d

Ec
ow

at
er

 o
f S

an
 D

ie
go

N
/A

12
/0

6/
19

28
51

1
Pl

um
bi

ng
04

9-
02

3-
01

1
14

0 
So

ut
h 

6t
h 

St
re

et
Ri

ve
r o

f G
od

 C
hu

rc
h

O
w

ne
r

N
/A

12
/0

9/
19

28
51

2
Ho

us
e 

De
m

o
04

9-
02

2-
01

4
53

5 
"H

" S
tr

ee
t

Do
ra

 C
or

on
a

A&
N

 Q
ua

lit
y 

Bu
ild

er
s

N
/A

12
/0

9/
19

28
51

3
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Fe
e 

O
nl

y
04

7-
05

0-
02

2
Bw

tn
. N

. 7
th

 a
nd

 N
. 8

th
 S

t.
M

FC
 Im

pe
ria

l I
 L

LC
O

w
ne

r
N

/A

12
/1

0/
19

28
51

4
Ri

gh
t o

f W
ay

N
/A

83
5 

N
or

th
 E

as
te

rn
 A

ve
nu

e
Ci

ty
 o

f B
ra

w
le

y 
So

 C
al

 G
as

N
/A

12
/1

0/
19

28
51

5
Ri

gh
t o

f W
ay

N
/A

82
5 

N
. E

as
te

rn
 A

ve
./

Tr
ai

l
Ci

ty
 o

f B
ra

w
le

y 
So

 C
al

 G
as

N
/A

12
/1

0/
19

28
51

6
Ri

gh
t o

f W
ay

N
/A

16
28

-1
63

2 
"A

" S
tr

ee
t

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ra
w

le
y 

So
 C

al
 G

as
N

/A

12
/1

0/
19

28
51

7
Re

ro
of

04
6-

20
4-

00
3

13
0 

"E
" S

tr
ee

t
M

ik
e 

Pa
te

l
Ac

tio
n 

Ai
r C

on
di

tio
ni

ng
$4

,0
00

.0
0

12
/1

0/
19

28
51

8
Re

ro
of

04
6-

16
4-

00
4

24
0 

Dr
ift

w
oo

d 
Pl

ac
e

M
ar

ib
el

 O
liv

ar
es

Ba
ra

ja
s R

oo
fin

g
$4

,5
00

.0
0

12
/1

0/
19

28
51

9
Ho

us
e 

Re
m

od
el

04
7-

20
1-

01
0

63
5 

N
or

th
 8

th
 S

tr
ee

t
Ire

ne
 S

ol
an

o
O

w
ne

r
$3

,5
00

.0
0

12
/1

0/
19

28
52

0
Pa

tio
04

8-
10

2-
00

4-
00

0
22

4 
"H

" S
tr

ee
t

Ar
th

ur
 B

ar
ro

s
W

A 
Gr

ee
n 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n

$6
,0

00
.0

0

12
/1

1/
19

28
52

1
El

ec
tr

ic
al

04
6-

26
0-

02
8

46
0 

W
es

t "
D"

 S
tr

ee
t, 

#A
Ed

m
on

d 
Ge

e
O

w
ne

r
N

/A

12
/1

1/
19

28
52

2
Pl

um
bi

ng
/R

O
W

04
9-

03
1-

00
5

12
8 

So
ut

h 
8t

h 
St

re
et

Je
nn

ife
r A

rm
st

ro
ng

J&
A 

Pl
um

bi
ng

N
/A

12
/1

2/
19

28
52

3
Re

ro
of

04
6-

23
8-

03
9

43
9 

W
es

t M
ag

no
lia

 S
tr

ee
t

Tr
oy

 K
at

he
ry

ne
Br

ot
he

rs
 R

oo
fin

g 
Co

.
$3

6,
00

0.
00

12
/1

2/
19

28
52

4
Ho

us
e 

Re
m

od
el

04
6-

35
5-

02
9

10
07

 A
la

m
o 

St
re

et
La

ur
a 

Be
ll 

O
w

ne
r

$5
00

.0
0

12
/1

2/
19

28
52

5
As

be
st

os
 A

ba
te

m
en

t
04

8-
17

3-
01

2
66

5 
M

ar
ily

n 
Av

en
ue

M
ik

e 
an

d 
Di

ed
re

 M
cK

in
le

y
Al

lia
nc

e 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l G

ro
up

, I
nc

.
$6

,0
00

.0
0

12
/1

2/
19

28
52

6
Re

ro
of

04
7-

43
0-

00
3

68
8 

N
or

th
 E

as
te

rn
 A

ve
nu

e
Ro

sa
na

 G
aw

at
3R

1 
Bu

ild
er

s,
 In

c.
$2

,2
00

.0
0

12
/1

3/
19

28
52

7
N

ew
 H

ou
se

04
7-

08
3-

06
2

82
5 

N
or

th
 E

as
te

rn
 A

ve
nu

e
HI

RJ
 H

ol
di

ng
s L

LC
So

ut
he

rn
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 D
ev

el
op

er
s

$1
48

,0
00

.0
0

12
/1

3/
19

28
52

8
N

ew
 H

ou
se

04
7-

08
3-

06
3

83
5 

N
or

th
 E

as
te

rn
 A

ve
nu

e
HI

RJ
 H

ol
di

ng
s L

LC
So

ut
he

rn
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 D
ev

el
op

er
s

$1
48

,0
00

.0
0

12
/1

3/
19

28
52

9
Pl

um
bi

ng
04

8-
14

1-
00

1
17

2 
W

es
t "

I"
 S

tr
ee

t
Ja

m
es

 N
ai

ll
O

w
ne

r
N

/A

RE
CO

RD
 O

F 
BU

IL
DI

N
G

 P
ER

M
IT

S

AD
DR

ES
S

O
W

N
ER

IS
SU

ED
 T

O
CO

ST
 O

F 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
TS

123



Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y:

  O
sc

ar
 E

sc
al

an
te

, I
nt

er
im

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
O

ffi
ci

al
De

ce
m

be
r 2

01
9

1/
23

/2
02

0

DA
TE

 
PE

RM
IT

 
PE

RM
IT

AS
SE

SS
O

R 
PA

RC
EL

 
IS

SU
ED

N
U

M
BE

R
DE

SC
RI

PT
IO

N
N

U
M

BE
R

RE
CO

RD
 O

F 
BU

IL
DI

N
G

 P
ER

M
IT

S

AD
DR

ES
S

O
W

N
ER

IS
SU

ED
 T

O
CO

ST
 O

F 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
TS

12
/1

3/
19

28
53

0
Re

ro
of

04
6-

11
2-

00
4

68
1 

N
or

th
 F

irs
t S

tr
ee

t
M

ik
e 

Ga
rc

ia
Ag

ui
rr

e'
s R

oo
fin

g
$4

,9
00

.0
0

12
/1

3/
19

28
53

1
As

be
st

os
 A

ba
te

m
en

t
04

9-
13

2-
03

4
12

45
 "J

" S
tr

ee
t

He
ct

or
 G

al
ar

te
Al

lia
nc

e 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l G

ro
up

, I
nc

.
$5

,5
00

.0
0

12
/1

7/
19

28
53

2
Pl

um
bi

ng
/R

O
W

04
9-

09
0-

00
6

31
0 

So
ut

h 
8t

h 
St

re
et

Br
aw

le
y 

Pl
um

bi
ng

 L
LC

J&
A 

Pl
um

bi
ng

N
/A

12
/1

8/
19

28
53

3
Ho

us
e 

Ad
di

tio
n

04
9-

11
4-

01
5

11
53

 "J
" S

tr
ee

t
Je

su
s L

op
ez

 S
an

ch
ez

O
w

ne
r

$2
0,

00
0.

00

12
/1

9/
19

28
53

4
Pl

um
bi

ng
04

9-
16

1-
01

4-
00

0
10

73
 "K

" S
tr

ee
t

Ca
rm

en
 L

oy
a

Ca
m

pe
sin

os
 U

ni
do

s,
 In

c.
N

/A

12
/1

9/
19

28
53

5
El

ec
tr

ic
al

04
6-

17
4-

01
9

13
5 

"D
" S

tr
ee

t
Sa

m
ue

l S
ol

or
io

St
ill

s E
le

ct
ric

N
/A

12
/1

9/
19

28
53

6
Ho

us
e 

Re
m

od
el

04
9-

13
2-

00
5

44
6 

1/
2 

"J
" S

tr
ee

t
Ti

m
ot

hy
 F

. R
am

se
y

O
w

ne
r

$1
,6

00
.0

0

12
/2

0/
19

28
53

7
Pa

tio
04

8-
27

5-
03

6
11

5 
M

cK
en

zie
 P

la
ce

Di
an

a 
Fl

or
es

O
w

ne
r

$1
2,

00
0.

00

12
/2

0/
19

28
53

8
Re

m
od

el
 H

ou
se

04
8-

07
1-

00
2

32
7 

Ru
ss

el
l R

oa
d

Jo
hn

 a
nd

 R
ho

nd
a 

Fa
rg

o
O

w
ne

r
$4

0,
00

0.
00

12
/2

3/
19

28
53

9
Pa

tio
04

8-
27

1-
03

9
78

7 
Ca

m
er

on
 C

ou
rt

Ke
rr

y 
M

es
ss

an
ge

r
Ca

ct
us

 D
es

er
t C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

$1
5,

00
0.

00

12
/2

3/
19

28
54

0
Pe

rg
ol

a
04

8-
43

0-
00

3
10

80
 S

ou
th

 B
ra

w
le

y 
Av

en
ue

Su
n 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 B

an
k

Ca
ct

us
 D

es
er

t C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
$8

,0
00

.0
0

12
/2

3/
19

28
54

1
N

ew
 H

ou
se

04
9-

02
2-

01
4

53
5 

"H
" S

tr
ee

t
Do

ra
 C

or
on

a
A&

N
 Q

ua
lit

y 
Bu

ild
er

s
$1

28
,4

00
.0

0

12
/2

6/
19

28
54

2
Pl

um
bi

ng
/R

O
W

04
7-

20
1-

00
9

76
4 

M
ag

no
lia

 S
tr

ee
t

Se
rg

io
 B

ar
ro

n
A&

N
 Q

ua
lit

y 
Bu

ild
er

s
N

/A

12
/2

6/
19

28
54

3
Pl

um
bi

ng
/R

O
W

04
7-

34
5-

00
7

14
7 

N
or

th
 8

th
St

re
et

Ci
ud

ad
 P

la
za

 L
LC

O
w

ne
r

N
/A

12
/2

7/
19

28
54

4
El

ec
tr

ic
al

04
8-

15
1-

00
5

23
6 

"I
" S

tr
ee

t
Do

nn
ie

 R
ic

ha
rd

s
AA

 E
le

ct
ric

N
/A

12
/2

7/
19

28
54

5
El

ec
tr

ic
al

04
7-

06
0-

04
1-

00
0

12
03

 R
iv

er
 D

riv
e

Da
ni

el
 D

ua
rt

e
AA

 E
le

ct
ric

N
/A

12
/3

0/
19

28
54

6
Ri

gh
t o

f W
ay

N
/A

M
ai

n&
9t

h/
8t

h 
&

 9
th

 S
t.

Ci
ty

 o
f B

ra
w

le
y

AT
&

T
N

/A

12
/3

0/
19

28
54

7
Po

rc
h/

Ca
rp

or
t/

Pa
tio

04
7-

12
2-

04
0

65
7 

N
or

th
 7

th
 S

tr
ee

t
Le

tic
ia

 a
nd

 C
ha

rle
s M

en
de

z
O

w
ne

r
$1

3,
00

0.
00

12
/3

0/
19

28
54

8
Bu

sin
es

s R
em

od
el

04
9-

01
2-

00
6

18
3 

So
ut

h 
5t

h 
St

re
et

Lo
re

nz
o 

Su
ar

ez
AJ

RA
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

$5
,0

00
.0

0

12
/3

0/
19

28
54

9
Ga

ra
ge

 R
em

od
el

04
8-

35
9-

00
8

98
7 

Ca
lle

 L
un

a
Je

su
s M

ar
m

ol
ej

o
O

w
ne

r
$1

,3
00

.0
0

124



BR
AW

LE
Y 

AI
RP

O
RT

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

  
 

 

O
ct

ob
er

 –
 D

ec
em

be
r, 

20
19

 
 

 
 

 

M
em

be
r N

am
e 

10
/1

8/
19

 
11

/2
0/

19
 

12
/1

8/
19

 
 

 
 

 
To

ny
 F

ril
ey

 
P 

P 
P 

Br
ia

n 
Fl

oy
d 

A 
A 

A 
Ti

m
 K

el
le

y 
P 

P 
P 

Pe
te

r O
st

er
ka

m
p 

P 
A 

A 
El

iza
be

th
 K

er
n 

P 
P 

P 
 A:

 
Ab

se
nt

 
P:

 
Pr

es
en

t 
 

125



CITY OF BRAWLEY 
October 16, 2019 

 
The Airport Advisory Commission of the City of Brawley, California met in a regular session at 4:00 PM, Public 
Works Department Conference Room, 180 S. Western Avenue, Brawley, California, the date, time and place duly 
established for the holding of said meeting. 
 
Chairman Kelley called meeting to order @ 4:00pm 
  
 PRESENT: Kelley, Osterkamp, Friley, Kern 
 ABSENT:  Floyd 
 
1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as submitted.  m/s/c  Friley/Osterkamp 4-1 
 
2. PUBLIC APPEARANCES/COMMENTS There was none 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
    
The minutes for September 18, 2019 were approved as submitted.  m/s/c  Friley/Osterkamp 4-1 
 
4. REGULAR BUSINESS FIXED BASE OPERATOR REPORT 

Fuel Sales 
• 1,191 Gallons of 100-LL AVGAS September 2019. 
• 1,204 Gallons of Jet A September 2019. 
• 80 landings, 81 Departures September 2019. 
• Hangar Occupancy- 4 vacant hangars- $180 (2), and $120 (2) hangars as of September 2019. 
• Tommy Mills talked about the situation with fuel dispenser card reader that needs to be replaced 

due to it is outdated. City will talk to the company to know exactly what to provide service means 
and if it includes replacement parts. He also informed about the situation with the new Led Lights 
Constant Current Regulators that were not installed in a climate-controlled building. They are heat 
sensitive. City will talk to Peter Bonello to know the details.  
 

5. STAFF REPORT 
• July, August, and September 2019 Expenditure and Revenue Reports were provided. Cash on hand 

balance report was provided. 
• They express the interesting to include an AWOS station as a project; we will check if it is included in 

the Master Plan. If it is not, the plan needs to be updated to include it. Chairman Kelley requested 
that Peter Bonello talk about the process to include an AWOS project in the December Commission 
meeting.    

• Last 60 days some prospects expressed interesting in Executive Hangars; some in the designated 
area (east of property). It was expressed the idea to form and Ad Hoc committee to review 
prospectors in Executive Hangars. She mentioned that another prospect is ready to prepare a site 
plan in the west side of the property; a tenant that will sublease REACH. Chairman Kelley proposed 
Co – Chairman Osterkamp and Commissioner Friley proposed himself (Commissioner Friley being the 
leader) in the Ad Hoc Committee for Executive Hangars. It was expressed that a WOS or Windsock 
will be good to have and it would attract users. 

• Interim Fire Chief York commented that hangars inspections are coming at the beginning of the year.  
Tommy Mills mentioned that the runway was swept and the debris is gone.     
 

 

126



6. NEW BUSINESS 
• None 

  
7. ADJOURNMENT 5pm 
 
Guillermo Sillas, Public Works Director 

127



CITY OF BRAWLEY 
November 20, 2019 

 
The Airport Advisory Commission of the City of Brawley, California met in a regular session at 4:00 PM, 
Public Works Department Conference Room, 180 S. Western Avenue, Brawley, California, the date, time and 
place duly established for the holding of said meeting. 
 
Chairman Kelley called meeting to order @ 4:02pm 
  
 PRESENT: Kelley, Friley, Kern 
 ABSENT:  Floyd, Osterkamp, 
 
1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as submitted.  m/s/c  Friley/Kern 3-2 
 
2. PUBLIC APPEARANCES/COMMENTS There was none 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
    
The minutes for October 16, 2019 were approved as submitted.  m/s/c  Friley/Kern 3-2 
 
4. REGULAR BUSINESS FIXED BASE OPERATOR REPORT 

Fuel Sales 
• 2,053.4 Gallons of 100-LL AVGAS October, 2019. 
• 1,781 Gallons of Jet A October, 2019. 
• 110 landings, 125 Departures October, 2019. 
• Hangar Occupancy- 2 vacant hangars- $180 (1), and $120 (1) hangars as of October, 2019. 
• Tommy Mills stated that in December, 2019 there will have 2 vacant hangars (Hangars 57 & 19). 

 
5. STAFF REPORT 

• Cash on Hand balance: $302,371.10 
• Revenues: $39,909.89 – 32.8% of Budget 
• Expenditures: $ 4,023.26 – 23.2% of Budget 
• The ADHOC committee to follow up with City Manager Rosanna Bayon Moore on when to 

schedule the ADHOC committee meeting.  But before the meeting the City needs to have an 
amount to establish the value. 

• Valuation for Airport Property for Lease 
o Could use the land lease price for Farm Aviation as a base valuation. 
o Chairman Kelley to make contact with City Manager Rosanna Bayon Moore to discuss the 

valuation process. 
 

6. STATUS UPDATES 
• Strategic Planning 

o Commission is requesting for Peter Bonello to be present at the next commission meeting in 
December, 2019, to discuss the runway rehabilitation project and to include the AWOS with 
the project.    

• Executive Hangars 
o Chairman Kelley stated that City Manager Rosanna Bayon Moore will provide information / 

update on the executive hangars with the perspective client. 

128



6. NEW BUSINESS 
• None 

  
7. ADJOURNMENT 5pm 
 
 
Alan Chan, Engineering Technician II 

129



approximately $72,000 for the equipment, would cost approximately $80,000 to install the 
product, and would cost approximately $10,000 to have plans and specifications for this 
project, and would cost approximately $5,000 a year to have the system certified.  Peter will 
email over the comparisons for the Commissioners to look over. 

• Executive Hangars 
o No Feedback 

 
6. NEW BUSINESS 

• Chairman Kelley requested what the height limitations and building set back are.  Also if there is a 
5AC area in front of the 3MG water tank. 

  
7. ADJOURNMENT 4:55pm  
 
 
Alan Chan, Engineering Technician II 

130



CITY OF BRAWLEY 
December 18, 2019 

 
The Airport Advisory Commission of the City of Brawley, California met in a regular session at 4:00 PM, Public 
Works Department Conference Room, 180 S. Western Avenue, Brawley, California, the date, time and place duly 
established for the holding of said meeting. 
 
Chairman Kelley called meeting to order @ 4:21pm 
  
 PRESENT: Kelley, Friley, Kern 
 ABSENT: Floyd, Osterkamp 
 
1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as submitted.  m/s/c  Friley/Kern 3-2 
 
2. PUBLIC APPEARANCES/COMMENTS There was none 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
    
The minutes for November 20, 2019 were approved as submitted.  m/s/c  Friley/Kern 3-2 
 
4. REGULAR BUSINESS FIXED BASE OPERATOR REPORT 

Fuel Sales 
• 1,636.5 Gallons of 100-LL AVGAS November 2019. 
• 1,876 Gallons of Jet A November 2019. 
• 98 landings, 95 Departures November 2019. 
• Hangar Occupancy- 2 vacant hangars- $180 (1), and $120 (1) hangars as of December 13, 2019. 
• Tommy Mills stated there are 2 corrections that need to be done to the hangar layout, Hangar #43 is 

Vacant and Hangar #62 has Vertex Builders renting that hangar, changes will be made to next month 
hangar layout. 
 

5. STAFF REPORT 
• Cash on Hand balance: $293,420.68 
• Revenues: $50,176.74 – 41.2% of Budget 
• Expenditures: $ 11,884.95 – 41.7% of Budget 
• Annual Hangar inspection notifications will be sent out in January, 2020 by the Brawley Fire 

Department 
• The ADHOC committee to follow up with City Manager Rosanna Bayon Moore will advise the ADHOC 

committee when there is forward momentum on the executive hangars. 
 

6. STATUS UPDATES 
• Strategic Planning 

o Talked with Peter Bonello for the following: 
 AWOS – Type 3 will need to have a benefit cost analysis done, and is usually in the $10M 

project area 
 AWOS – Type two and one Need to have a justification to have current weather data.  Is 

there a Need?  Commissioner Friley will ask pilots that use the airport if an AWOS would be 
a benefit, and to provide a justification letter to the City for an AWOS. 

 Peter suggested the City and Commissioners to look into the “SAY Weather” advisory 
system would cost approximately $6,000, since it is significantly less expensive in both 
equipment and maintenance as compared to the AWOS Type 3 that would cost 

131



BR
AW

LE
Y 

PA
RK

S 
&

 R
EC

RE
AT

IO
N

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

  
O

ct
ob

er
 –

 D
ec

em
be

r, 
20

19
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
em

be
r N

am
e 

10
/1

5/
19

 
11

/1
9/

19
 

12
/1

7/
19

 
  

 
 

CA
N

CE
LL

ED
 

Ru
st

y 
Ga

rc
ia

 
P 

P 
 

M
ar

y 
M

ill
er

 
P 

P 
 

M
ik

e 
Di

ck
er

so
n 

P 
P 

 
Vi

ct
or

 E
st

ra
da

 
P 

P 
 

Ju
lio

 Ja
ur

eg
ui

 
A 

P 
 

An
dr

ew
 C

ol
ac

e 
P 

A 
 

Je
nn

y 
Be

na
vi

de
s 

P 
P 

 
Lu

ke
 H

am
by

 
P 

P 
 

Ro
sa

nn
a 

B.
 M

oo
re

 
P 

P 
 

 A:
 

Ab
se

nt
 

P:
 

Pr
es

en
t 

 

132



CITY OF BRAWLEY  
October 15, 2019 

 
The Parks and Recreation Department of the City of Brawley, California met in a regular session at 12:00 PM, Lions 
Center Small Meeting Room, 225 A Street, Brawley, California, the date, time and place duly established for the 
holding of said meeting.  
 
Chairperson Garcia called meeting to order @ 12:08pm. 
 
 PRESENT: Garcia, Hamby, Benavides, Estrada, Dickerson, Colace, Miller 

ABSENT:     Jauregui 
STAFF:       Perez, Self, Mello, Bayon Moore 

 
1.          APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as submitted.  m/s/c Miller, Benavides 7-1 
 
2.          PUBLIC APPEARANCES/COMMENTS   None. 
 
3.          APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 
The minutes for July 16, 2019 were approved as submitted.  m/s/c Miller /Benavides 7-1 
 
4. REGULAR BUSINESS  
 

a. PARKS UPDATE: 
 
Guadalupe Park/Sidewalk Library: 
City Manager Bayon Moore reported on the Diocese of San Diego who owns the property that is 
Guadalupe Park.  There has been a contract between the City of Brawley and the Diocese.  The City of 
Brawley uses the property as a Park.  The Diocese does not want to enter into another agreement, but 
they are allowing the City use of the Park for two more years. Also, the Brawley Elementary School District 
has a “sidewalk Library” receptacle they want to place at Alyce Gereaux Park.   
 
Parks Coordinator Perez stated the Park is mainly used by soccer organizations such as 2 days of youth 
soccer and 3 days of adult soccer.  On the weekends, the Park is mostly used for birthday parties or other 
family gatherings.  Regarding Alyce Gereaux, a picture was demonstrated of where the placement of the 
receptacle “sidewalk Library” would be situated, and it would be in site of a camera.  
  
Interim Parks & Recreation Director Mello stated the Friends of the Library would start up the project by 
providing the books.   
 
Commissioner Colace asked, what was the purpose of the temporary fencing around the splash pad and if 
there would be plans for a permanent fence.  Bayon Moore mentioned the temporary fencing was placed 
to guide the community to wash-off before entering the splash pad.   
 
Special events and road closure requests: 
City Manager Bayon Moore reported there have been special requests to close the streets for nonprofit 
groups and in previous years there were fee waivers.  However, the City is proceeding with the charge of a 
minimum of $500.00.  The only activity that does not have a road closure fee is the Cattle Call events.   
Parks Coordinator Perez shared with the Commission there will be hand washing signs placed around the 
Arena at the request of the Cattle Call Committee.  Bayon Moore continued the signs were requested 

133



CITY OF BRAWLEY  
November 19, 2019 

 
The Parks and Recreation Department of the City of Brawley, California met in a regular session at 12:00 PM, Lions 
Center Small Meeting Room, 225 A Street, Brawley, California, the date, time and place duly established for the 
holding of said meeting.  
 
Chairperson Garcia called meeting to order @ 12:10pm. 
 
 PRESENT: Garcia, Hamby, Benavides, Estrada, Dickerson, Jauregui, Miller 

ABSENT:     Colace 
STAFF:       Mello, Bayon Moore 
GUEST:  Misty Lee, Brawley Boys & Girls Clubs of America 
  

1.          APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as submitted.  m/s/c Miller, Estrada 7-1 
 
2.          PUBLIC APPEARANCES/COMMENTS    
 
Commissioner Jauregui distributed an event flyer for a fundraiser “Rockin’ Out Cancer”. 
 
3.          APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 
The minutes for October 15, 2019 were approved as submitted.  m/s/c Benavides/Miller 7-0-1 
 
4. REGULAR BUSINESS  
 

a. PARKS UPDATE: 
 
Guadalupe Park/Sidewalk Library: 
City Manager Moore reported on Brawley Elementary School District “sidewalk Library” receptacle 
ceremony is waiting on a date.  
 
The tree planting at Hinojosa Park had a good turnout. It was successful and had good press. 36 trees 
from the grant were planted plus one from a local resident, Ms. Lopez. BUHS Interact Club worked hard. 
The MOU with the city of El Centro was signed and allows for an 85% survival rate requirement. 
 

b. RECREATION UPDATE: 
  
 Basketball Season: 
 
 Sign-ups have ended. Practice starts in early December. 
 
 Soccer Season: 
 
 Two games are left in the last game of the season. 
 
 
 
 

 

134



Boys & Girls Club Letter of Interest: 
 
Misty Lee, Director of the Brawley Boys & Girls Club gave background information on the national 
organization that has been around for 109 years. Lee then outlined the current program run at the Teen 
Center. The program focuses on teens. Program structure includes attendance of 15-20 per day which is 
currently cramped. From a 2015 study, the program is designed as a formula for impact. The design 
involves identifying who is served, how served, and what is to be achieved. There are 48 registered drop-
in with membership. The program is 3-7PM, Tuesday, Wednesday, and Thursday. The goal is to have 50-
75 registered and to serve 30-40 daily.  
 
Commissioner Estrada asked what options there are for kids. Benavides asked about what others use the 
building. Is the B&G Club going to be the exclusive or primary user of the building? Jauregui said that the 
building is here and should be used. 
 
MOTION: The Commission recommends that the City takes measures to ensure that the building 
continues to be used for teens. The Commission will support the City Council on their decision regarding 
the Brawley Boys & Girls Club use. Miller/Benavides 7-1  
 

 CITY UPDATES: 
 

Cattle Call activities were enjoyed. Parade logistics were good. Acme, Republic have a good relationship 
with the City. Commission Garcia mentioned the traffic flow was good. Commissioner Jauregui noticed 
that the parade seemed short. City Manager Bayon Moore mentioned that it seemed that less people 
were at the Chili Cook-off. There were more people at the Mariachi Festival. Issues for improvement 
include that the clean-up plan needs improvement. Handicapped parking needs to be better as well as 
sidewalk access. 

 
 City Manager Bayon Moore presented an overview relating to the proposed budget and potential service 
 reductions. 

 
5. COMMISSION MEMBER COMMENTS None 
  
6. OTHER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
   
 -Movie Night at the Lions Center is scheduled for December 20, 2019 at 6pm. 
  
7. ADJOURNMENT @ 2:07pm 
 
 
Marjo Mello, Interim Parks and Recreation Director  
 

135



because of the e-coli breakout at the Del Mar Fair.  The public will be reminded to wash their hands.  On 
Sunday of the Rodeo, there is a petting zoo and communication aims to be proactive. 
 

b. RECREATION UPDATE: 
  
 Soccer Season: 

Recreation Coordinator Self reported there are 400 children registered for the City’s youth soccer league. 
There are 8 teams in the 4-5, 6-7 and 8-9 age groups.  There are four 10-11-year-old teams for a total of 
28 teams.  October 15, 2019 is the first day of games.  Games are held at Del Rio for the 4-5 yr. olds at 
5:30pm, Gonzales Park the 6-7 yr. olds at 5:30pm or 7pm, Hinojosa Park 8-9 yr. olds at 5:30pm or 7pm, 
Alyce Gereaux Park 10-11 yr. olds at 5:30pm or 7pm.  We were able to get coaches for all teams including 
Commissioner Garcia who is coaching a 4-5 yr. old team. 
 
Boys & Girls Club Letter of Interest: 
 
City Manager Bayon Moore reported the Teen Center came about in the early 2000’s because the City 
wrote a grant in cooperation with the BBGC. BBGC occupied the building and was responsible for utilities.  
They then vacated the lease agreement at a certain point due to financial constraints.  The Club has 
recently asked to use the building exclusively for Teen programming.  They are currently using two rooms 
in the building but are growing and would like more space.  Their intent is to staff the facility.  The City 
offers a drop-in center for teens to have a safe space to go.  Discussions are underway.    
 
The original purpose of the building is being reviewed and how it ought to be used in the future is being 
explored. The City rents the facility out and there are other users. Recreation Coordinator Self mentioned 
Calvary Kaleo Church uses the facility on Sundays, and Karate takes place 2 days a week.  The building is 
also used for Baby Showers and Birthday parties, but it has not been rented out due to the need of two air 
conditioning units that need to be replaced.  
 
Commissioner Garcia expressed concerns with “exclusive” use.  The City doesn’t allow others to have 
exclusive use of any facility or park.  For example, BUHS does not have exclusive use for Wiest Field.  
 
Commissioner Garcia suggested that the Commission invite the BBGC Executive Director to the next 
meeting.  Commissioner Garcia moved to have the next meeting in November at the Teen Center and to 
invite the BBGC representative to join the meeting. m/s/c: Garcia/Miller 
 

c. CITY UPDATES: 
 
 MOUs with IVDA, SunStrokers, BUHS and BESD: 

 
Parks Coordinator Self reported that Nikki Lopez who oversees the IVDA year-round swim team has 
signed the MOU.  They use the pool Monday through Friday, 4am-6am/4pm-8pm.   They pay a $500.00 
fee monthly. The Brawley Sunstrokers use the pool in the summer season for two months and they pay a 
$500.00 monthly fee.  The Sunstrokers representative will be signing the MOU in the coming week. 
 
City Manager Bayon Moore reported BESD and BUHS are still in the process of considering the MOU.  
BESD would like to sign a 2-year agreement.  The Council has voted on and adopted a resolution for cost 
recovery. 
 

5. COMMISSION MEMBER COMMENTS 
  
6. OTHER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 -Community Clean-Up Day is October 10, 2019 
 -2019 Cattle Call events was passed out before the meeting. 

136



 -Cattle Call Chair protocol was given at the last meeting.  
 -Movie Night at the Lions Center is scheduled for December 20, 2019 at 6pm. 
 -November 16, 2019 is tree planting at Hinojosa Park. 
 
7. ADJOURNMENT @ 1:15pm 
 
 
Rachel Zepeda, Administrative Secretary  
 

137



BR
AW

LE
Y 

PL
AN

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
ct

ob
er

-D
ec

em
be

r, 
20

19
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
em

be
r N

am
e 

10
/0

2/
19

 
11

/0
6/

19
 

12
/0

4/
19

 

 
 

 
Ca

nc
el

le
d 

Ro
be

rt
 P

al
ac

io
 

P 
P 

 
Ke

va
n 

Hu
tc

hi
ns

on
 

P 
P 

 
Ge

or
ge

 M
ar

qu
ez

 
A 

P 
 

Ja
y 

Go
ya

l 
P 

P 
 

Da
rr

en
 S

m
ith

 
P 

P 
 

Ju
an

 T
av

ar
es

 
P 

P 
 

Eu
ge

ne
 B

um
be

ra
 

P 
P 

 
 A:

  A
bs

en
t 

P:
  P

re
se

nt
 

  

138



 
 

BRAWLEY PLANNING COMMISSION 
October 2, 2019 

 
The Planning Commission of the City of Brawley, California, met in Regular Session at 5:30 p.m., City Council 
Chambers, 383 Main Street, Brawley, California, the date, time, and place duly established for the holding said 
meeting. The City Clerk attests to the posting of the agenda pursuant to the G.C.54954. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL 
 

Chairman Goyal called meeting to order @ 5:30 pm 
 

PRESENT: Goyal, Palacio, Tavares, Smith, Bumbera, Hutchinson 
ABSENT: Marquez 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as submitted. m/s/c Smith/Hutchinson 6-1 
 

PRESENT: Palacio, Marquez, Smith, Bumbera, Hutchinson 
ABSENT: Marquez 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
The minutes for July 10, 2019 were approved as submitted. m/s/c Smith/ Palacio 6-1 

 
PRESENT: Palacio, Marquez, Smith, Bumbera, Hutchinson 
ABSENT: Marquez 
 

4. PUBLIC APPEARANCES  There was none 
 
5. CODE ENFORCEMENT REPORT 
 
*June and July Code Enforcement Report were presented 
 
6. REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION RULES 2019-2020 
 
The Planning Commission adopted the Planning Commission Rules 2019-2020.  m/s/c  Hutchinson/Palacio  6-1 
 

PRESENT: Palacio, Marquez, Smith, Bumbera, Hutchinson 
ABSENT: Marquez 
 
 
 
 
 
 

139



7. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 2019-2020 
 
The Planning Commission elected Kevan Hutchinson to Chairman.  m/s/c  Smith/Palacio  6-1 
 
 PRESENT: Palacio, Marquez, Smith, Bumbera, Hutchinson 
 ABSENT:  Marquez 
 
The Plannining Commission elected Darren Smith to Vice-Chairman. m/s/c  Hutchinson/Palacio  6-1 
 
PRESENT: Palacio, Marquez, Smith, Bumbera, Hutchinson 
ABSENT:  Marquez 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT @ 5:48 pm 
 
 
Gordon R. Gaste AICP CEP, Development Services Director 

140



1. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 2018-2019 
 

The Commission tabled this item to a later date. m/s/c Smith/ Palacio 5-0 
 
 
2. ADJOURNED TO August 7, 2019. 
 
3. ADJOURNMENT @ 6:03 pm 
 
 

Gordon R. Gaste AICP CEP, Development Services Director 

141



 
 

BRAWLEY PLANNING COMMISSION 
November 13, 2019 

 
The Planning Commission of the City of Brawley, California, met in Regular Session at 5:30 p.m., City Council 
Chambers, 383 Main Street, Brawley, California, the date, time, and place duly established for the holding said 
meeting. The City Clerk attests to the posting of the agenda pursuant to the G.C.54954. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL 
 
Vice-Chairman Smith called meeting to order @ 5:30 pm 
 

PRESENT: Goyal, Palacio, Tavares, Smith, Bumbera, Hutchinson, Marquez 
ABSENT: None 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as submitted.  m/s/c  Palacio/Goyal  7-0 
 

PRESENT: Goyal, Palacio, Tavares, Smith, Bumbera, Hutchinson, Marquez 
ABSENT: None 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
The minutes for July 10, 2019 were approved as submitted.  m/s/c  Smith/ Palacio  7-0 

 
PRESENT: Goyal, Palacio, Tavares, Smith, Bumbera, Hutchinson,Marquez 
ABSENT: None 
 

4. PUBLIC APPEARANCES  There was none 
 
5. PUREGRO INFORMATIONAL PRESENTATION 
 
Daniel Cordero Jr., Project Manager for the Department of Toxic Substances Control provided a Community 
Update for the Draft Remedial Action Plan and Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Former PureGro Facility 
Property in Brawley which are now available for Public Review and Comment. The Public Comment Period is from 
November 13 to December 17, 2019. A community meeting and open house will be held on December 5, 2019 at 
the American Citizen Club from 6:00P.M. to 8:00 P.M. 
 
Commissioner Goyal asked if there was going to be any landscaping provided on site and if there is intention on 
developing the lot.  
 
Mr. Cordero informed the Commission if there is some landscape to be provided to the south and informed the 
commission that at this time there have been no expressed interest in development of the property but it will be 
available for use as an industrial lot as is its current intention.  
 
Commissioner Palacio asked who would be the jurisdiction approving the final remediation activities and ensure 
the dirt was appropriately mitigated. 

142



Mr. Cordero informed the Commission that they would be testing and approving the lot once remediation is 
completed.  
 
Chairman Hutchinson asked where the stockpile would go.  
 
Mr. Cordero informed the Commission that the dirt would go to a landfill that accepts this type of soil.  
 
Julia Busse, Chevron Representative informed the Commission that they are open to commercial and industrial 
development of the lot once this remediation process is completed.  
 
City Manager Bayon Moore provided additional information to the Commission on the progress of the current 
remediation plan.  
 
6. ADJOURNMENT @ 5:57pm 
 
 
Gordon R. Gaste, AICP CEP, Development Services Director 

143



BR
AW

LE
Y 

PU
BI

C 
LI

BR
AR

Y 
BO

AR
D

 O
F 

TR
U

ST
EE

S 
 

O
ct

ob
er

 - 
De

ce
m

be
r, 

20
19

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

em
be

r N
am

e 
10

/1
9/

19
 

11
/1

3/
19

 
12

/1
1/

19
 

  
 

 
 

El
iza

be
th

 L
or

en
ze

n 
P 

P 
P 

Ju
dy

 G
ra

nt
 

P 
P 

P 
Di

an
e 

Lo
hr

 
P 

P 
P 

Di
xi

e 
Sm

ith
 

A 
P 

P 
Cr

ys
ta

l D
ur

an
 

P 
A 

A 
Ro

sa
nn

a 
Ba

yo
n 

M
oo

re
 

A 
A 

P 
Li

ai
so

n 
Lu

ke
 H

am
by

 
P 

P 
P 

 A:
  

Ab
se

nt
 

P:
   

Pr
es

en
t 

  

144



CITY OF BRAWLEY 
October 19, 2019 

 
The Library Board of Trustees of the City of Brawley, California met in regular session at 5:05 PM on October 19, 
2019 in the Brawley Public Library Park Meeting Room. The Library Director attests to the posting of the agenda 
pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956. 
 
President Lorenzen called meeting to order @ 5:20 pm 

 PRESENT: Lorenzen, Lohr, Duran, Grant, Hamby, Mello 
 ABSENT:    Smith, Bayon Moore 
 
1. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as submitted.  m/s/c  Lohr/Duran  4-1 
 
2.  PUBLIC APPEARANCES & COMMENTS 
 
Patrons have thanked the library for the two handicapped parking spaces. 
 
3. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 
The minutes for September 2019 were approved as submitted.  m/s/c  Duran/Lohr  4-1 
 
4. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
a. Finance:  Bills were presented for payment, discussed, and approved for payment.  m/s/c  Grant/Duran 
 4-1 
  
b. Calendar:  October story time will be Halloween STEM activities, Coin-collecting program has been moved 
 to December 12, Angel Tea is set for December 5 and October 26 will have a comics program. Library will 
 be closed for the Chili Cook-Off and Parade.  
 
c. Policies: The Computer Use Policy tabled until the next meeting. 
 
d. Zip Books:  Funding is assured through August 2020. Demand is the same. 
 
e. Personnel:  Interviews for the Library Page position are being held. The Driver/clerk for LAMBS has been 
 reopened.   
 
f. Literacy/LEARN:  Staff will be attending CLA this month.  
 
g. LAMBS:  Erika Noriega is back filling in until a new driver is hired. Karen Teran will begin her maternity 
 leave in November.  
 
h. Friends of the Library: The Bookstore is now open several days a week. There will be a Booksale on 
 October 26. 
 
i. Reports from Liaisons: CM Hamby brought us up to date on City happenings. 
 
 
 
 

145



5. ADJOURNMENT @ 7:15 pm 
 
 
Judy Grant, Secretary 

146



CITY OF BRAWLEY 
November 13, 2019 

 
The Library Board of Trustees of the City of Brawley, California met in regular session at 5:05 PM on October 19, 
2019 in the Brawley Public Library Park Meeting Room. The Library Director attests to the posting of the agenda 
pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956. 
 
President Lorenzen called meeting to order @ 5:05 pm 

 PRESENT: Lorenzen, Lohr, Smith, Grant, Hamby, Mello 
 ABSENT:    Duran, Bayon Moore 
 
1. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as submitted.  m/s/c  Lohr/Grant  4-1 
 
2.  PUBLIC APPEARANCES & COMMENTS There was none 
 
3. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 
The minutes for October 2019 were approved as submitted.  m/s/c  Lohr/Grant   4-1 
 
4. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
a. Finance:  Bills were presented for payment, discussed, and approved for payment.  m/s/c  Lohr/smith 
 4-1 

 
Other Finance: The City budget is looking at a $1.3 million shortfall. A discussion was had about the 
proposed cuts to the library. The library will be closed on Tuesdays at the Main branch, but will be open at 
the branch from 4-8pm. Among other cuts, we will empty our mini storage unit by the end of the year. 
Other cuts were discussed and explained. 

  
b. Calendar:   Coin-collecting program is December 12.   
 
c. Policies: The Computer Use Policy tabled until after the first of the year.  
 
d. Zip Books:  Funding is assured through August 2020. Demand is the same. 
 
e. Personnel:  Jose Perdomo was hired as a Library Page and Erika Noreiga will continue to fill in on LAMBS.    
 
f. Literacy/LEARN:  Work on the FFL grant will begin in December.  
 
g. LAMBS:  The office will be moved to save money. 
 
h. Friends of the Library: The days that the Bookstore is open will change. The proposal to advertise on 
 pharmacy bags was rejected.  
 
i. Reports from Liaisons:  There was none. 
 
 
 
 
 

147



5. ADJOURNMENT @ 6:45 pm 
 
 
Judy Grant, Secretary 

148



CITY OF BRAWLEY 
December 11, 2019 

 
The Board of Trustees of the City of Brawley, California met in regular session at 5:05 PM, Brawley Public Library 
Park Meeting Room, 400 Main St., Brawley, California; the date, time and place duly established or the holding of 
said meeting. The Library Director attests to the posting of the agenda pursuant to G.C.  §54954.2. 
 
President Lorenzen called meeting to order @ 5:15 pm 
 

PRESENT: Lorenzen, Grant, Smith, Lohr, Hamby, Bayon Moore, Gasca 
ABSENT:  Duran, Mello 

 
1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as presented.  m/s/c Lohr/Grant  4-1 
 
2. PUBLIC APPEARANCES/COMMENTS There was none 
 
3. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES There was none  
 
4. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
a.  Finance: Bills were presented for payment, discussed, and approved for payment.  m/s/c  Lohr/Smith  4-1 

 
Other Finance:  Lengthy discussion regarding budget cuts that will be implemented beginning January 1, 
2020. The Main Branch new hours of operation will be Wednesday and Thursday from 10 am to 7 pm, 
Friday and Saturday from 9am to 5 pm. closed Sunday, Monday and Tuesday. Del Rio Branch will be open 
Monday, Tuesday, and Thursday from 4 to 8 pm. 

 
b. Calendar: The Angel Tea was enjoyed by all. The Coin-collecting program is set for December 12. 
 
c. Policies:  The Computer Use Policy redo is tabled until later. 
 
d. ZipBooks: Discussion tabled 
 
e. Personnel: Discussion tabled.   
 
f. Literacy/LEARN:  Discussion tabled.  
 
g. LAMBS: Discussion tabled.  
 
h. Friends of the Library:  A raffle basket will be available at the Coin-collection program. New store hours 
are  being set up.  
 
i. Liaisons: CM Bayon Moore and CM Hamby aided in the budget discussions 
 
5. ADJOURNMENT @6:45 pm 
 
 
Judy Grant, Secretary 
 
 

149



Ca
sh

Fi
na

nc
ia

l I
ns

tit
ut

io
n

Pa
r V

al
ue

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

%
 Y

ie
ld

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 E

ar
ni

ng
s

%
 o

f P
or

fo
lio

Pu
rc

ha
se

 D
at

e
M

at
ur

ity
 D

at
e

U
ni

on
 B

an
k

11
,4

49
,0

04
.7

0
$ 

   
 

11
,4

49
,0

04
.7

0
$ 

   
 

0.
00

-
$ 

   
  

N
/A

N
/A

M
ul

ti-
Ba

nk
 S

ec
ur

iti
es

 
33

3,
18

6.
28

$ 
   

   
   

 
33

3,
18

6.
28

$ 
   

   
   

 
0.

00
-

$ 
   

  
N

/A
N

/A
To

ta
l C

as
h

11
,7

82
,1

90
.9

8
$ 

   
 

11
,7

82
,1

90
.9

8
$ 

   
 

-
$ 

   
 

26
.4

3%

Lo
ca

l A
ge

nc
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d 

(L
AI

F)
15

,2
51

,1
15

.9
8

$ 
   

 
15

,2
78

,1
15

.0
0

$ 
   

 
2.

29
87

,6
13

.4
3

$ 
   

   
34

.2
2%

N
/A

N
/A

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

Ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
s 

of
 D

ep
os

it 
(s

or
te

d 
by

 m
at

ur
ity

 d
at

e)
Fi

na
nc

ia
l I

ns
tit

ut
io

n
Pa

r V
al

ue
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
%

 Y
ie

ld
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 E
ar

ni
ng

s
%

 o
f P

or
fo

lio
Pu

rc
ha

se
 D

at
e

M
at

ur
ity

 D
at

e
Su

n 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 F
ed

er
al

 C
re

di
t U

ni
on

1,
50

0,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
1,

50
0,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

0.
25

96
2.

34
$ 

   
   

 
01

/1
7/

19
01

/1
7/

20
Co

m
m

un
ity

 V
al

le
y 

Ba
nk

1,
00

0,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

2.
20

5,
71

7.
02

$ 
   

  
06

/1
0/

19
06

/1
0/

20
Fi

rs
t I

m
pe

ria
l C

re
di

t U
ni

on
 

1,
02

5,
65

0.
04

$ 
   

   
1,

02
5,

65
0.

04
$ 

   
   

2.
50

6,
40

6.
06

$ 
   

  
09

/0
8/

19
09

/0
8/

20
Fi

rs
t I

m
pe

ria
l C

re
di

t U
ni

on
 

1,
02

5,
65

0.
04

$ 
   

   
1,

02
5,

65
0.

04
$ 

   
   

2.
50

6,
40

6.
06

$ 
   

  
09

/0
8/

19
09

/0
8/

20
To

ta
l N

on
-N

eg
ot

ia
bl

e 
Ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

s 
of

 D
ep

os
it

4,
55

1,
30

0.
08

$ 
   

   
4,

55
1,

30
0.

08
$ 

   
   

19
,4

91
.4

8
$ 

   
   

10
.2

1%

N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

Ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
s 

of
 D

ep
os

it 
(s

or
te

d 
by

 m
at

ur
ity

 d
at

e)
CU

SI
P 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l I
ns

tit
ut

io
n

Pa
r V

al
ue

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

%
 Y

ie
ld

Es
tim

at
ed

 Q
tr

ly
 E

ar
ni

ng
s

%
 o

f P
or

fo
lio

Pu
rc

ha
se

 D
at

e
M

at
ur

ity
 D

at
e

45
78

0P
AL

9
In

st
itu

tio
n 

fo
r S

av
in

gs
 in

 N
ew

po
rt

24
7,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

7,
85

7.
09

$ 
   

   
  

2.
04

1,
26

5.
88

$ 
   

  
07

/3
1/

15
07

/3
1/

20
26

26
6N

S3
2

En
te

rB
an

k 
U

SA
24

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

24
5,

19
3.

55
$ 

   
   

  
1.

74
1,

07
1.

88
$ 

   
  

10
/1

6/
15

10
/1

6/
20

31
93

8Q
P5

7
Fi

rs
t B

us
in

es
s 

Ba
nk

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

5,
19

1.
10

$ 
   

   
  

1.
75

1,
07

1.
88

$ 
   

  
10

/1
6/

15
10

/1
6/

20
32

08
2B

EB
1

Fi
rs

t M
er

ch
an

ts
 B

an
k

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

5,
04

1.
65

$ 
   

   
  

1.
79

1,
10

2.
50

$ 
   

  
10

/3
0/

15
10

/3
0/

20
05

58
0A

D
F8

BM
W

 B
an

k 
of

 N
or

th
 A

m
er

ic
a

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

6,
16

8.
65

$ 
   

   
  

2.
23

1,
37

8.
13

$ 
   

  
11

/1
8/

15
11

/1
8/

20
95

96
0N

JJ
7

W
es

te
rn

 S
ta

te
 B

an
k

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

6,
19

3.
15

$ 
   

   
  

1.
64

1,
01

0.
63

$ 
   

  
02

/1
9/

16
02

/1
9/

21
31

94
61

AR
0

Fi
rs

t C
ho

ic
e 

Ba
nk

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

4,
52

7.
15

$ 
   

   
  

1.
50

91
8.

75
$ 

   
   

 
02

/2
6/

16
02

/2
6/

21
48

12
5Y

D
50

JP
 M

or
ga

n 
Ch

as
e 

Ba
nk

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

4,
99

5.
10

$ 
   

   
  

1.
50

91
8.

75
$ 

   
   

 
03

/1
6/

16
03

/1
6/

21
14

04
20

XR
6

Ca
pi

ta
l O

ne
 B

an
k 

U
SA

 N
A

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

5,
69

0.
90

$ 
   

   
  

1.
69

1,
04

1.
25

$ 
   

  
04

/0
6/

16
04

/0
6/

21
98

15
71

CE
0

W
or

ld
s F

or
em

os
t B

an
k

20
0,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
20

0,
05

8.
00

$ 
   

   
  

1.
74

87
5.

00
$ 

   
   

 
05

/0
5/

16
05

/0
5/

21
48

04
0P

BE
4

Jo
ne

sb
or

o 
St

at
e 

Ba
nk

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

5,
01

4.
70

$ 
   

   
  

1.
74

1,
07

1.
88

$ 
   

  
05

/2
0/

16
05

/2
0/

21
90

34
8J

AR
1

U
BS

 B
an

k 
U

SA
 

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

4,
71

3.
35

$ 
   

   
  

1.
65

1,
01

0.
63

$ 
   

  
06

/0
7/

16
06

/0
7/

21
38

76
2P

BN
1

G
ra

nt
 C

ou
nt

y 
Ba

nk
24

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

24
4,

75
0.

10
$ 

   
   

  
1.

50
91

8.
75

$ 
   

   
 

07
/1

3/
16

07
/1

3/
21

06
06

2Q
XG

4
Ba

nk
 o

f B
ar

od
a

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

5,
65

6.
60

$ 
   

   
  

1.
84

1,
13

3.
13

$ 
   

  
11

/2
3/

16
11

/2
3/

21
35

90
7X

CW
5

Fr
on

tie
r B

an
k

24
8,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

6,
91

1.
28

$ 
   

   
  

1.
55

96
1.

00
$ 

   
   

 
11

/2
3/

16
11

/2
3/

21
92

83
4C

CB
6

Vi
si

on
 B

an
k 

of
 Io

w
a

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

5,
19

8.
45

$ 
   

   
  

1.
74

1,
07

1.
88

$ 
   

  
11

/3
0/

16
11

/3
0/

21
58

73
3A

D
N

6
M

er
ca

nt
ile

 C
om

m
er

ce
 B

an
k

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

6,
59

7.
40

$ 
   

   
  

2.
03

1,
25

5.
63

$ 
   

  
12

/0
9/

16
12

/0
6/

21
33

76
7A

R7
8

Fi
rs

t B
an

k 
24

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

24
7,

35
4.

45
$ 

   
   

  
2.

17
1,

34
7.

50
$ 

   
  

12
/3

0/
16

12
/3

0/
21

61
74

7M
G

54
M

or
ga

n 
St

an
le

y 
Ba

nk
 N

.A
. 

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

8,
84

8.
95

$ 
   

   
  

2.
46

1,
53

1.
25

$ 
   

  
01

/1
8/

18
01

/1
8/

22
06

64
7J

AK
0

Ba
nk

N
ew

po
rt

 
24

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

24
5,

06
6.

15
$ 

   
   

  
1.

99
1,

22
5.

00
$ 

   
  

02
/2

8/
17

02
/2

8/
22

87
16

4Y
Q

B3
Sy

nc
hr

on
y 

Ba
nk

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

8,
58

1.
90

$ 
   

   
  

2.
36

1,
47

0.
00

$ 
   

  
04

/0
7/

17
04

/0
7/

22
94

97
63

G
F7

W
el

ls
 F

ar
go

 B
an

k
24

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

24
6,

57
7.

56
$ 

   
   

  
2.

38
1,

47
0.

00
$ 

   
  

04
/1

2/
17

04
/1

2/
22

02
58

7C
EM

8
Am

er
ic

an
 E

xp
re

ss
 F

ed
er

al
 S

av
in

gs
 B

an
k

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

7,
51

3.
70

$ 
   

   
  

2.
32

1,
43

9.
38

$ 
   

  
05

/0
3/

17
05

/0
3/

22
85

62
85

AW
1

St
at

e 
Ba

nk
 o

f I
nd

ia
 N

ew
 Y

or
k

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

8,
99

5.
95

$ 
   

   
  

2.
41

1,
50

0.
63

$ 
   

  
05

/3
0/

17
05

/3
1/

22
79

54
50

A7
0

Sa
lli

e 
M

ae
 B

an
k

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

8,
45

9.
40

$ 
   

   
  

2.
31

1,
43

9.
38

$ 
   

  
06

/2
1/

17
06

/2
1/

22
02

58
7D

V4
7

Am
er

ic
an

 E
xp

re
ss

 C
en

tu
rio

n 
Ba

nk
24

7,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

24
9,

61
8.

20
$ 

   
   

  
2.

32
1,

45
1.

13
$ 

   
  

08
/0

8/
17

08
/0

8/
22

14
04

2R
H

M
6

Ca
pi

ta
l O

ne
 N

at
l A

ss
n

24
7,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
25

0,
58

8.
91

$ 
   

   
  

2.
31

1,
45

1.
13

$ 
   

  
08

/2
3/

17
08

/2
3/

22
31

91
41

H
U

4
Fi

rs
t B

an
k 

of
 H

ig
hl

an
d 

Pa
rk

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

7,
30

0.
55

$ 
   

   
  

2.
12

1,
31

6.
88

$ 
   

  
09

/2
0/

17
09

/2
0/

22
62

38
4R

AB
2

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Am

er
ic

a 
Fe

de
ra

l C
re

di
t U

ni
on

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

8,
31

2.
40

$ 
   

   
  

2.
26

1,
40

8.
75

$ 
   

  
10

/1
2/

17
10

/1
2/

22
33

71
5L

AV
2

Fi
rs

t T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

Fe
de

ra
l C

re
di

t U
ni

on
24

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

24
7,

98
4.

10
$ 

   
   

  
2.

22
1,

37
8.

13
$ 

   
  

10
/1

6/
17

10
/1

7/
22

06
74

0K
LD

7
Ba

rc
la

ys
 B

an
k 

D
el

aw
ar

e
24

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

24
8,

30
7.

50
$ 

   
   

  
2.

26
1,

40
8.

75
$ 

   
  

10
/1

8/
17

10
/1

8/
22

20
03

3A
XS

O
Co

m
en

ity
 C

ap
ita

l B
an

k
24

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

24
8,

32
4.

65
$ 

   
   

  
2.

26
1,

40
8.

75
$ 

   
  

10
/2

3/
17

10
/2

4/
22

CI
TY

 O
F 

BR
A

W
LE

Y
IN

VE
ST

M
EN

T 
PO

RT
FO

LI
O

 R
EP

O
RT

A
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
9

1

150



 

 
 

Brawley City Council & 
Successor Agency to Brawley  

Community Redevelopment Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, February 4, 2020 6:00 PM 
City Council Chambers 

383 Main Street 
Brawley, California 92227 

 
Norma Kastner-Jauregui, Mayor                                        Alma Benavides, City Clerk 
Luke Hamby, Mayor Pro-Tempore               William S. Smerdon, City 
Sam Couchman, Council Member                   Attorney/City Treasurer 
George A. Nava, Council Member  Rosanna Bayon Moore, City Manager/ 
Donald L. Wharton, Council Member                                                  Executive Director 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
INVOCATION  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

151



 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
2. PUBLIC APPEARANCES/COMMENTS (Not to exceed 4 minutes) this is the 
 time for the public to address the Council on any item not appearing on the 
 agenda that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council. The 
 Mayor will recognize you and when you come to the microphone, please state 
 your name for the record. You are not allowed to make personal attacks on 
 individuals or make comments which are slanderous or which may invade an 
 individual’s personal privacy. Please direct your questions and comments to  
 the City Council. 
 
a. Introduction of Newly Hired Accounting Assistant Jessica Castillo, by Finance 
 Director Tyler Salcido.  
 
b. Proclamation Declaring February 7-14, 2020, National Marriage Week in the City 
 of Brawley Presented to Ms. Maria Lopez- Pantoja, IVROP Project Coordinator.  
 Pg 6 
 
3. CONSENT AGENDA Items are approved by one motion. Council Members or 
 members of the public may request consent items be considered separately at a 
 time determined by the Mayor.  
 
a. Approve Accounts Payable: January 24, 2020  Pgs 7-24 
      January 31, 2020  Pgs  25-39 
  
b. Adopt Resolution No. 2020-  : Resolution of the City Council of the City of 
 Brawley, California Authorizing a Continuous Resolution Destruction Schedule 
 for Brawley Police Department Public Records.  Pgs  40-53 
 
c. Award a Geotechnical and Materials Testing Contract to Landmark Consultants, 

Inc. for Project No. 2019-07 Allen Street Water Pipeline Replacement 
Improvements Project in the Amount of $23,010.00, with a 10% Contingency Set 
Aside for an Amount Not to Exceed $25,311.00.   Pgs  54-65 

 
d. Adopt Resolution No. 2020- :  Resolution of the City Council of the City of 

Brawley, California Authorizing the Submission of the City of Brawley’s 5-Year 
Program List of Projects Funded by Measure D for Years 2020 through 2024, 
Beginning January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2024.  Pgs  66-73 

 
4. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
a. Discussion and Potential Action to Award Project No. 2019-07 Allen Street Water 

Pipeline Replacement and Improvements Project to Granite Construction 
Company in the Amount of $613,316 2 with a 10% Contingency Set Aside for an 
Amount Not to Exceed $674,647.60. Pgs  74-76 



 

 
b. Presentation of FY 2019/2020 Mid Year Budget Review by Tyler Salcido, 

Finance Director.  Pgs  77-99 
 
c. Discussion and Potential Action to Approve Auditing Services Contract with Moss 

Levy & Hartzheim for FY Ending June 30, 2019 in the Amount of $54,500.   
 Pgs  100-106 
 
d. Discussion and Potential Action to Adopt Resolution No. 2020- :  Resolution of 

the City Council of the City of Brawley, California Accepting Grant Funds 
Allocated to the Citizen’s Option for Public Safety (COPS) Program and 
Submittal of the Expenditure Plan for FY 2018/2019 Funding through the State of 
California Local Safety and Protection Account.  Pgs  107-111  

 
e. Discussion and Potential Action to Adopt Resolution No. 2020- :  Resolution of 

the City Council of the City of Brawley, California Authorizing the City to Apply for 
an Award from the Infill Infrastructure Program.  Pgs  112-114 

 
f. Discussion and Potential Action to Approve Los Amigos de la Comunidad’s 

Request for Sale and Consumption of Alcohol on Public Property, Specifically on 
Main Street, North and South Plaza Park on Saturday, March 28, 2020 for the 
Cesar Chavez Community Celebration from 10am to 11pm.  Pgs  115-118 

 
g. Discussion and Potential Action to Approve Submittal of a Letter of Support to 

the California Energy Commission for the Salton Sea Geothermal Lithium 
Recovery Demonstration Project at the Request of Berkshire Hathaway Energy 
(BHE) Renewables.  Pgs  119-121 

 
5. DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 
 
a. Update by Public Works Director Guillermo Sillas, PE  
 

i) Emergency Construction at the Brawley Water Treatment Plant 1) to 
Replace Components of Two Sedimentation Basins and 2) to Recondition 
Water Distribution Pumps and Motors 422 and 423 

 
b. Update on Efforts to Restore Girls and Adult Softball Leagues by Interim Parks & 

Recreation Director Marjo Mello 
 
6. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 
 
a. Monthly Staff Report for February 2020, prepared by Shirley Bonillas, Personnel 
 & Risk Management Administrator. Pg 122 
 
 



 

b. Record of Building Permits for December 2019 in the City of Brawley, Prepared 
 by Oscar Escalante, Interim Building Official.  Pgs 123-124 
 
b. Attendance Summary & Minutes for City of Brawley Boards/Commissions from  
 October 1 – December 31, 2019. 
 
 1) Brawley Airport Advisory Commission Pgs  125-131 
 2) Brawley Parks & Recreation Commission  Pgs  132-137  
 3) Brawley Planning Commission  Pgs  138-143   
 4) Brawley Library Board of Trustees  Pgs 144-149  
 
7. CITY TREASURER REPORT 
 
a. Quarterly Investment Summary through December 2019  Pgs 150-151 
 
8. CITY COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS   
 
9. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
10. CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
11. CITY CLERK REPORT 
 
12.  CLOSED SESSION 
 
REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS 
 
a. Conference with Real Property Negotiator – (California Government Code 

§54956.8) 
Address: 225 A Street, Brawley, California 

           Negotiator: City Manager 
           Negotiating Parties:  Boys & Girls Club 
           Under Negotiation: Rate and Terms 
 
EXISTING LITIGATION (California Government Code §54956.9) 
 
a. Conference with Legal Counsel – Two (2) Cases 

 
i. Frankie Rodriguez, Pablo C. Lopez, Marco A. Garcia, Omar 
 Balderas, Gerardo Vindiola, David Villalobos, Julian Jimenez, 
 Ricardo Rosales, Daniel Atondo, David Siquieroz, Jonathan 
 Gutierrez, Anthony Padilla, Julio Velasquez, Roberto Orozco, 
 Mariano C. Valenzuela, Jr., Raul Bernal, Ralph Walker, Jose Limon 
 and Pete Guzman, on behalf of themselves and all other 
 employees similarly situated vs. City of Brawley.  



 

 
   
ii. Brawley Public Safety Employee Association, Jeremy Schaffer, 
 David Holetz, Jorge Garibay, Darlene Garcia, Dennise Montano, 
 Nathan Montes-Gonzalez, Karla Razo, Daniel Swithenbank, Daniel 
 Schleyer, Ricardo Gutierrez, Juan Morales, Ana Amaya, Brian 
 Harsany, Angelica Garcia, Martha Garcia, Javier Martinez, Jake 
 Yuhas, Dean Beckwith, Ricardo Valdez, David Pham, Stephen 
 James Dyroff, Adriana Ruiz, Jon Dellinger, Isaac Romo, Jesse 
 Yuhas, Susanne Nickel, Rudy H. Nunez, Diana Diaz, Sixto Moreno, 
 Joon Kim, Francisco Mendoza, Maghen Caudill, Regina Kim vs. 
 City of Brawley. 

 
POTENTIAL LITIGATION (California Government Code §54956.9) 
 
a. Conference with Legal Counsel – One (1) Case 
 
PERSONNEL MATTERS (Government Code §54957) 
 
a. Public Employee Appointment to the Position of Police Chief 

 

ADJOURNMENT Regular Meeting, Tuesday, February 18, 2020 @ 6:00 PM, 383 
Main Street, Brawley, California. Supporting Documents are available for public review 
in the Office of the City Clerk, 383 Main Street, Brawley, California 92227 - Monday 
through Friday during Regular Business Hours; Individuals who require special 
accommodations are requested to give 48 hours prior notice.  Contact: Office of the City 
Clerk @ 760-351-3080. 
        

        Alma Benavides, City Clerk 



CI
TY

 O
F 

BR
A

W
LE

Y
IN

VE
ST

M
EN

T 
PO

RT
FO

LI
O

 R
EP

O
RT

A
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
9

N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

Ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
s 

of
 D

ep
os

it 
(s

or
te

d 
by

 m
at

ur
ity

 d
at

e 
- C

on
tin

ue
d)

CU
SI

P 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l I

ns
tit

ut
io

n
Pu

rc
ha

se
 P

ric
e

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

%
 Y

ie
ld

Es
tim

at
ed

 Q
tr

ly
 E

ar
ni

ng
s

%
 o

f P
or

fo
lio

Pu
rc

ha
se

 D
at

e
M

at
ur

ity
 D

at
e

01
74

8D
AY

2
Al

le
gi

an
ce

 B
an

k
24

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

24
7,

65
3.

35
$ 

   
   

  
2.

17
1,

34
7.

50
$ 

   
  

11
/0

3/
17

11
/0

3/
22

87
27

0L
AY

9
TI

AA
 F

SB
 

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

7,
65

0.
90

$ 
   

   
  

2.
17

1,
34

7.
50

$ 
   

  
11

/2
1/

17
11

/2
2/

22
38

14
8P

TQ
0

G
ol

dm
an

 S
ac

hs
 B

an
k

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

9,
73

0.
95

$ 
   

   
  

2.
45

1,
53

1.
25

$ 
   

  
11

/2
9/

17
11

/2
9/

22
45

58
1E

AP
6

In
du

st
ria

l &
 C

om
m

. B
an

k 
of

 C
hi

na
 U

SA
24

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

24
9,

79
4.

65
$ 

   
   

  
2.

45
1,

53
1.

25
$ 

   
  

12
/2

2/
17

12
/2

2/
22

82
83

73
G

L8
Si

lv
er

ga
te

 B
an

k
24

9,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

24
9,

14
4.

42
$ 

   
   

  
2.

39
1,

49
4.

00
$ 

   
  

06
/2

8/
19

06
/2

8/
23

17
31

2Q
Q

36
Ci

tib
an

k 
N

A
24

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

25
7,

34
5.

55
$ 

   
   

  
3.

14
2,

02
1.

25
$ 

   
  

07
/2

4/
18

07
/2

4/
23

58
40

4D
ET

4
M

ed
al

lio
n 

Ba
nk

 S
al

t L
ak

e 
Ci

ty
24

9,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

25
1,

28
8.

31
$ 

   
   

  
2.

08
1,

30
7.

25
$ 

   
  

07
/2

2/
19

07
/2

4/
23

39
57

3L
AG

3
G

re
en

st
at

e 
Cr

ed
it 

U
ni

on
24

9,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

24
9,

57
5.

19
$ 

   
   

  
1.

89
1,

18
2.

75
$ 

   
  

08
/3

0/
19

08
/3

0/
23

59
01

3J
5R

6
M

er
ric

k 
Ba

nk
24

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

24
5,

49
9.

80
$ 

   
   

  
3.

59
2,

20
5.

00
$ 

   
  

12
/0

7/
18

12
/0

7/
23

07
27

27
AJ

9
Ba

yC
oa

st
 B

an
k

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

5,
20

8.
25

$ 
   

   
  

2.
99

1,
83

7.
50

$ 
   

  
01

/3
1/

19
01

/3
1/

24
61

76
0A

L5
6

M
or

ga
n 

St
an

le
y 

Pr
iv

at
e 

Ba
nk

24
7,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
25

1,
30

0.
27

$ 
   

   
  

2.
26

1,
42

0.
25

$ 
   

  
07

/0
5/

19
07

/0
5/

24
03

30
34

AG
4

An
ch

or
 D

 B
an

k 
Te

xo
m

a
24

9,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

24
9,

10
2.

09
$ 

   
   

  
2.

34
5,

85
1.

50
$ 

   
  

07
/2

2/
19

07
/2

2/
24

90
35

2R
AM

7
U

S 
Al

lia
nc

e 
Fe

d 
Cr

ed
it 

U
ni

on
24

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

24
5,

64
6.

80
$ 

   
   

  
1.

99
1,

22
5.

00
$ 

   
  

09
/1

9/
19

09
/1

9/
24

49
97

24
AK

8
Kn

ox
vi

lle
 T

VA
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
Cr

 U
ni

on
24

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

24
5,

12
2.

50
$ 

   
   

  
1.

94
1,

19
4.

38
$ 

   
  

11
/2

6/
19

11
/2

6/
24

47
40

67
AU

9
Je

ffe
rs

on
 F

in
an

ci
al

 C
re

di
t U

ni
on

24
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
24

5,
99

4.
70

$ 
   

   
  

2.
04

1,
25

5.
63

$ 
   

  
12

/1
0/

19
12

/1
0/

24

To
ta

l N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

Ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
s 

of
 D

ep
os

it
11

,4
97

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

 
11

,5
81

,6
50

.3
2

$ 
   

 
66

,0
76

.1
3

$ 
   

   
25

.7
9%

U
.S

. A
ge

nc
y 

O
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 (s
or

te
d 

by
 m

at
ur

ity
 d

at
e)

CU
SI

P 
Is

su
er

Pu
rc

ha
se

 P
ric

e
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
%

 Y
ie

ld
Es

tim
at

ed
 Q

tr
ly

 E
ar

ni
ng

s
%

 o
f P

or
fo

lio
Pu

rc
ha

se
 D

at
e

M
at

ur
ity

 D
at

e
M

oo
dy

/S
&

P
31

36
G

3N
76

Fe
de

ra
l N

at
l M

tg
 A

ss
n

1,
00

0,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
99

9,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

1.
62

4,
06

2.
50

$ 
   

  
08

/1
0/

16
08

/1
0/

21
AA

A/
AA

+
31

36
G

4E
U

3
Fe

de
ra

l N
at

l M
tg

 A
ss

n
49

0,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

48
9,

18
1.

70
$ 

   
   

  
1.

60
1,

96
0.

00
$ 

   
  

10
/2

8/
16

10
/2

8/
21

AA
A/

AA
+

To
ta

l U
.S

. A
ge

nc
y 

O
bl

ig
at

io
ns

1,
49

0,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
1,

48
8,

18
1.

70
$ 

   
   

6,
02

2.
50

$ 
   

  
3.

34
%

To
ta

l I
nv

es
tm

en
t P

or
tf

ol
io

44
,5

71
,6

07
.0

4
$ 

   
 

44
,6

81
,4

38
.0

8
$ 

   
 

17
9,

20
3.

54
$ 

   
   

10
0.

00
%

Th
is

 q
ua

rt
er

ly
 re

po
rt

 a
cc

ur
at

el
y 

re
fle

ct
s a

ll 
Ci

ty
 o

f B
ra

w
le

y'
s 

po
ol

ed
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
. I

t i
s 

in
 c

om
fo

rm
ity

 w
ith

 th
e 

Ci
ty

's
 In

ve
st

m
en

t P
ol

ic
y.

 T
he

 C
ity

 h
as

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 c

as
h 

flo
w

 to
 m

ee
t 

si
x 

m
on

th
s e

xp
en

di
tu

re
s.

 L
AI

F 
an

d 
M

ul
ti-

Ba
nk

 S
ec

ur
iti

es
, I

nc
. s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

re
 th

e 
so

ur
ce

 o
f m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
s.

Fe
br

ua
ry

 4
, 2

02
0

W
ill

ia
m

 S
. S

m
er

do
n,

 T
re

as
ur

er

2

151


	ADPD78E.tmp
	Government Code §34090: Destruction of City Records; excepted records; construction.
	Government Code §34090.5: Destruction of Records; conditions.

	ADP71D9.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPE371.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP7238.tmp
	1. CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	4. PUBLIC APPEARANCES  There was none
	6. REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION RULES 2019-2020
	The Planning Commission adopted the Planning Commission Rules 2019-2020.  m/s/c  Hutchinson/Palacio  6-1
	7. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 2019-2020
	8. ADJOURNMENT @ 5:48 pm
	Gordon R. Gaste AICP CEP, Development Services Director
	1. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 2018-2019
	2. ADJOURNED TO August 7, 2019.

	ADPE249.tmp
	1. CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	4. PUBLIC APPEARANCES  There was none
	6. ADJOURNMENT @ 5:57pm
	Gordon R. Gaste, AICP CEP, Development Services Director




